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Directors' report !

The directors present therr annual report and the audited financ:al statements for the 52 weeks ended 16 Seplember 2006

Transinon to IFRS
The financial statements for the year ended 16 September 2006 have been prepared i accordance with International Financial Reporung Standards (IFRS) as

endorsed and adopted for use 1 the EU The results for the comparative year ended 17 September 2005 are also presented m accordance with IFRS
Reconcibations berween pnmary statements produced under UK GAAP and IFRS together with explanations of the principal differences, are provided n note 33
to the financial statements

Profit and dividends
The consolidated income statement 15 on page 5 Profit for the year atitibutable to equity shareholders amounted to £317m, and dividends of £180m were

declared Dividends are detailed m note 3

Principal activites
The actvities of the group pnncipally concem the processing and manufacture of food waorldwide and textile retarlmg 1 the UK and the Republic of Ireland
Comments an the development of the bustness duning the penod under review and on the future outlook are given below

Business review
The profit before exceptional items and tax was £537m, an ncreass of £48m over the previous year

The £26m reduction 1n operating profit before exceptional items from £570m to £544m mcludes a £34m 1mpact of sugar regmme reforre and a £64m ncrease
energy costs, most of wiuch could not be recovered 1n pncing, as well as a £16m increase n amortisation of mtangibles These 1tems were largely mutigated by
strong trading performances across the group, especially at Pnmark through a combisation of lugher sales from the majer increase i selling space and a 3%
increase m ltke for-like sales AB Mauri, our intemanonal yeast and bakery ingredients business, moved sharply ahead after the mitial year of consohidation
following 1ts acquisiion

In grocery, sales grew by 3% and profit was flat  Strong progress was made by Ryvita, Imternanional Hot Beverages, ACH and our ethme foods business
Westnu!l However profitability was held back by particularty difficult trading at Alhed Bakenes, and by lower volumes and lower sugar pneing at Silver Spoon
Performance at Alled Bakentes was unsatisfactory during the year, wath volume declines in both Kingsmull and own label Two new Kengsmull products were
launched the promational strategy was revised and full recovery plans have been developed

The primary food busmess saw sales fall by 4% and aperating profit by 31% The shap decline profit from £166m 0 £115m 15 attnbutable to the EU operations
of British Sugar The umpact on the business of the changes to the EU sugar regime 1 esumated at £26m, excleding Silver Spoon, with a further impact of £21m
for unrecovered energy cost mcreases On 4 September 2006 the group acquired the [llove Sugar group, Afnea’s largest sugar producer with extensive agricultural
and manufactunng operations 1 six countres in Southern Afniea Details of the acquisition are mcluded 1n note 24

The ingredients business saw revenues and operating profit increase by 25% and 26% respectively Ttus reflected a full year contnbution from AB Maun,
following 1ts acquisition in November 2004 Good progress was made m recovenng hugher raw matenal cests, particularly molasses and energy, through a
combinahon of price ncreases and costs savings 1n a number of key markets Bakery ingredients contmued 1ts strong growth particularly in Chuna, South America
and South and West Africa

Primark again delivered very strong revenue and profit growth, both increasing by 18% to £1,168m and £166m respectively The revenue merease resulted from
3% growth 1n like for like sales and a substamnial ncrease n retal selimng space, which mereased 40% over the year from 2 Smulhion square feet to 3 5 muthon
square feet  The Litlewoods stores contnibuted sales and profits of £141m and £19m respectively pror to thetr closure in January 2006 and subsequent sale or
conversion to Pnimark stores  [n total 27 stores were opened during the year and, following the closure of six smaller stores, Primark was trading from 143 sicres
at the year end

Net financial ncome increased by £38m compared 1o a year ago  This was largely due to the caputal iyection of £283m received on 20 December 2005, which
served 10 reduce debt

Rusk management review

The risk management process in the group and the parent company, Associated Britsh Foods ple, seeks to enable the early identification, evaluation and effecuve
management of the key nsks facing the busimesses at operatonal level and to operate mternal controls, which adequately mitigate these nsks The key nsks and
nternal control procedures are reviewed by group personnel together with internal audit activities Each business 1s responsible for regularty assessmg its nisk
management actnanes to ensure good practice (n ail areas Compliance with group requirements 15 monitored six monthly, and these assessments are formally
reviewed by group personnel at least annwally The Audit commuttes recerves reports on tntemal financial control 1ssues fom management and from the extemnal
audstors and regularly 1eports to the board for the purposes of the board's annual review

The principal corporate nsks as identified by each business are |

1 Food safety .
The Company derives 55% of its turnover from the production znd sale of food Food products include bread, cnisphreads, flour, nee, noodles, tees, sugar and

sweefeners vegetable oils, cakes meat and dary products To manage food safety nsks, our sites operate food safety systems which are regularly reviewed to

ensure they remain effective 1ncluding compliance with afl regulatory requirements for hygiene and food safety Our food products are made o huigh standacds

regardiess of where they are manufactured The group always puts food safety before econotme considerations

2 Supply chamn labour standards

Companses 1n our sector, especially those with global supply chams, are at greater nsk of controversies relating o breaches by suppliers of the International Labour
Organisation core Jabour standards The group mungates this nisk of possible damage to its reputation by workmg hard to ensure that it does not buy from factones
with poor working conditions Pimark requires all the factonies that manufacture its clothes to sign up to Prmark’s Suppher Code of Conduct whsch lays out stnet
pudelmes on working conditions Primark's buyers visit ati factories before they start work with them and will not buy from factones with obviously poor
condibons In addition, every year the group sends independ d 1o a selection of factones to check they are m keeping with our standards In this way we
try to ensure that factones around the world that make our clothes ¢o so m a responsible way

Primark 18 a member of the Ethical Trading Inihabive an alliance of comparues, trade umons and non profit orgamsations that aums to promote respect for the
r1phts of people m factones and farms worldwide The group 1s commutted to montonng and progressively mproving the conditions of the people that make its
products

Twinings 1s a member of the Ethucal Tea Parinershup whuch requires it suppliers and subcontractors to meet the Intemational Labour Orgamsation core labour
standards, respecting an observance of human nghts and fundamental freedoms without discriminaton as to race sex, language or religion

3 Compenton rules

The penalnes for failing 10 comply with the 1998 Competihon Act, relevant EU law and all relevant competition legislaton are recogmised as nsks to he managed
within the group Clear policy direction, which includes compulsory awareness training and close support from the mtemal legal department, has reduced the
likelihood cf the group breaching these regulations

4 Environment
The group recogmsses the tmpact that s businesses have on the environment Therefore, a5 a muumum, we aim 10 comply with current appheable legislanon of the
countnes it which we operate, and our operations are conducted with a view to ensunng that
emmssions to ar releases to water and land filling solid wastes do not cause unaccepiable environmental unpacts and do not offend the community;
- sigruficant plant and process changes are assessed and posttively authonsed in advance to prevent adverse environmental impacis
- energy and natural resources are used efficiently and energy consumption 15 momitered and raw matenial waste 15 mninmsed,
- solid waste 15 reduced reused or recycled where practicable,
- the amount of packagmng used for group products 1s runimised, consistent with requarements for food safety and product protection,
products are transported efficiently to minimise fuel usage, consistent with customers’ demands, production arrangements and vehicle fleet eperations, and
effective emergency response procedures are 1a place to mimmise the mpact of forseeabie ncidents




Directors' report continued

5 Health and safety

We consider health and safety as equal 1n unportance to that of any other functon of the Company and uts business objectives We seek to provide a safe and
healthy workplace and system of work i1 lme with local regulations in etder to protect all employees, visitors and the public, insofar as they come mto contact with
forseeable work hazards Our employees are expected to adopt a proactive attutude towards this end We will contiug 1o develop safety and awareness amongst all
empioyees and will measure, manage and further improve our health and safety performance

Fatalities We very much regret that there were two deaths 1 our factones dunng the year One nvalved rotaimg machimery and the other involved a mechanical
tail-hift fitted 10 a delivery vehicle They were both fully investigated by our own experts and by the externat regulatory authonhes

Injunes In 2005 we reported 666 myunes to the regulators There was an increase 1n the absolute number of injunies m 2005 due to the acquisition of 44 more
factores both m the UK and mternationally However there were good performances and safety improvements in the established ABF companies

6 Cumency/commodity/anergy pnee fluctuation

In common wath othet global businesses in cur sectors, the group is exposed to risks from currency flucluations and changes (n commodity and energy prices
Group businesses operate strict hedging and procurement policies, assisted by the group treasury function, to mitigate the effects of volatility in these areas The
group has a treasury pohcy to which group busmnesses must adhere when mmpl wtiag tisk v g strategies

7 Loss of a major site

The group cperates from many key sites the loss of which, for example as a result of fire, would present sign:ficant operatonal difficulties Our operations have
busmess continuity plans wn place to manage the mpact of such an event and group insurance programmes to mitgate the financial consequences This readiness
to deal with the unexpected 1s exemplified by the response 10 the potennally catastrophue fire which destroyed Primark’s major UK warehouse in November 2005,
when altemanve amangements were quickly made to contnue supply of stock to Pnmark stores, and mumnuse distuphion

Property, plant & equipment

The group s tangible fixed assets are included in the financial statements at depreciated histonic cost  The properties are employed in the bustness and many of
them were acquired when market values were substantally lower than at present  The directors consider that a surplus over book value exsts but are unable to
quantify the excess

Directors and directors’ mterests
The directors who held office dunng the penod were as follows

JG Basen
PA Russell

1G Bason 15 also a director of the Company's parent company Associated Brinsh Foods ple, and detals of his unterests i the shares of Associated British Foods
ple appear i that company’s 2006 Annual Repert and Aceounts, mcluding bis iterests under the Associated Brinsh Foods 1994 Share Opt:on Scheme, the
Assocated Briush Foods 2000 Executive Share Option Scheme and the Associated Bninsh Foods Executive Share Incentive Plan 2003

PA Russell notified a bereficial mterest of 3,000 {2005 3,000) ordinary shares of 315/22p in Associated British Foods ple a5 at 16 September 2006

Associated Briish Foods Executive Share Incentive Plan 2003

For the three year period from 2003-4 to 2005-6 a long-term ncentive plan has been established for executve dircetors and other key executives. This plan
rewards superior growth in profits and cash flow and I n ble growth opportunities  The value of this loag-term incentive 1s up to 150%
of base salary over three years and 15 subject to testing at the end of 2005-6 against a pre-determuned operating prefit target range  Ths target range 15 demanding
but 1n any case payouts will net be made to scheme participants if growth in earnings per share 1s below RPT + 4% per annum on average over the three year penod
of the plan

Awards under this long-term mcentive plan are in the form of a conditional allocation of shares which wilk be released 1f, and to the extent that, the performance
targets descnibed are satisfied over the specified three year peniod  Sheres to a maximum value of §50% of salary were allocated m December 2003 followmg
shareholder approval at the 2003 AGM, and shares to meet these obligations have been acquired on the market  As at 16 September 2006, 18,186 shares had
been allocated to Peter Russell

Employees
Our employees are our most cruciat resource and therefore we abide by the following pnnciples

+ Equal opportumties

We are committed to offenng equal opporturuties to all people in their recrustment, trawnung and career development, having regard for thew particular
aptitudes and abilises Full and fair consideration 15 given to applicants with disabiliies and every effort 1s made to give employees whe become
disabled whalst employed by the company an opportunsty for retraining

« Health and safsty
We consider health and safety as equal an tmportance to that of any other function of the company and 1ts business objectives The policy and full
global report 1s available on the parent company website at www abf co uk

« Harassment
We will not tolerate sexual, mental or physical harassment m the workplace We expect incidents of harassment to be reported o the appropriate
huiman resources director

+ Human nights

Managers must take account of the core Intemational Labour Orgamisation fabour conventions and strve to observe the UN Declaration on Human
Rughts, by respecting the digiuty and human nghts of our employees and m particular as stated below

"Universal respect for an observance of human nghts and fundamental freedoms for all wathout disenimination as to race, sex, language or religron "
We remunerate farly with respect to skills, performance our peers and local condirons

+ Commumnication
We will brief employees and theur represertatives on all relevant matters on a regular basis

Supphbers

We will camy out our business honestly, ethically and with respect for the rights and interests of our supphiers We will settle our bills promptly betng &
signatary to the Better Payment Practice Code and we will co-operate with suppliers to improve quality and effictency We seek to develop relatienships
with suppher companies consistent with thesc basic pnciples and spearfically wath respect to human nghts and conditions of employment Where supphier
audits show shertcomings :n any of these areas, we will stnve to encourage a programme of unprovement leading to comphiance Responsibility for specific
supply codes and agreements rests with individual companies ABF Investrments ple has no frade credutors

Chantable and political denations

Contributions to chantable ergamsanons by the group during the year totalled £0 4m (2005 £0 3m) Pohncal donations were made dunng the year by
Food Tavestments Pty in Australia to the Liberal Party of Austraha of £12,273 {2005 - £4,132) Payments were made n 2005 1o the Austrahan Labour
Party of £1,446 and 1o the Nanional Party of Australia of £207 No such payments were made 1n 2006
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Disclosare of informatien to auditors
The directors who held office at the date of approval of the Directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are cach aware there 18 no relevant audit information

of which the Company's suditors are wnaware, and each director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to muake hunself aware of any
relevant audit mformation and to establish that the Company's audutors are aware of that infi For these purp relevant audit informanon means
mformaton needed by the Company's auditors in connéction with prepanng thext report on page 4 ‘

Auditors ‘
In accordance with section 384 of the Compantes Act 1985, a resolution for the reappointment of KPMG Audit Ple as auditors of the company 1s to be

proposed at the forthcormng annual general meeting

Directors’ indemnities
One direztor of the Company and three directers of eperating subsidianes benefited from quaifyng thurd party indernsuty provisions provided by the Company

during the financial year and as at the date of this report

Gomg concern
After making due enquinies, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the group has adequate resources to i op for the fc
fiture For this reason they continue to adopt the gong concern basts for preparing the 1}

1

By order of the board

w&u\’“ )

RS Mendelsohn 12 Apnl 2007
Secretary

Statement of directors' responsibilities 1n respect ot the annual report and the
financial statements

The directors are respensible for prepanng the annual report and the group and parent company financial statements in sccordance with appheable
law and regulahons

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for cach financial year Under that law they are required 1o prepare group financial
statements 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EUJ and applicable law and have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements n
accordance with UK Accounting Standards and applicable law {UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice’)

The group financal statements are required by law and IFRSs as adopted by the EU to present fairly the financial position and the performance of the
group, the Companies Act 1985 provides in refation to such fi 1 9 that 11 the relevant part of the Act 1o financial statements
giving a true and faur view are references to thewr achueving a faur presentauon

The group financtal statements are roquired by law to give a true and far view of the state of affairs of the parent company and of the profit and loss
of the parent company for that period. In prepanng each of the group and parent company financial statements, the directors are required (o

® select satable accounting pohicies and then apply ther consistently;

»  make jud and that are ble and prudent,

» for the group financial statements, state whether they have been prepared i accordance with IFRSs 2s adopted by the EU,

» for the parent company financtal statements, state whether apphcable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any matenal
departures disclosed and explaned in the parent company financial statements and

& prepare the financial statements on the gong concern basis unless 1t 1s mappropriate (o presume that the group and the parent company will
continue 1 brsiness

The d are responsible for & proper g records that disclose with bl &l any tme the financial posiuon of the
parent company and enable them to ensure that 1ts financral statemnents comply with the Companses Act 1985 They have gencral responssbibity for
:akmgsuchstepsasmrumahlyopenwthemtosafeguarddwmoﬁhesrwpmdmpm\mtmddmfraudmdothcrmeg\danues i




Independent audttors' report to the members of ABF Investments plc

We have audsted the group and parent company financial statements (the "financial statemnents™y of ABF Investments ple for the year ended 16 September 2006
which compnse the consolidated mcome statement, the cansolidated and parent company balance sheets, the consolidated ¢ash flow statement the
consohdated statement of recognised neome and expense and the related notes These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies
set out therein

Ths report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with section 235 of the Compames Act 1985 Our audst work has been
undertaken so that we mught state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them n an auditor's report and for no other purpose To
the fullest extent pernutted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our
audut wark, for this report, er for the opimuchs we have formed

Respective responsibilities of durectors and anditors

The directars’ responsibihiies for preparing the annual report and the group financial statements i accordance with applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU, and for preparing the parent company financial statements in accordance with applicable law and UK
Accountmg Standards (UK Generally Accepted Accountmg Practice} are set out 1n the Statement of Drrectors’ Responsibihties on page 3

Cur responsibihty 15 to audit the financial statements n accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and Internationat Standards on Auditing
(UK and Ireland) We report to you our opnion as to whether the financazl statements give a true and fair view and whether the financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companses Act 1985 We also report to you whether mn our opuuon the information given in the Directors' Report 1s
consistent with the financial statements In addition we report 1o you 1f, m our opuuon, the company has not kept proper accounting records, if we have not
recetved all the informaton and explanations we require for our auct, or 1f mformaton specified by law regarding directors’ remuneranon and other
transactions 15 net disclosed

We read the other inforrnation coatained in the annual report and consider whether 1t 1§ consistent with the audited financial statements We consider the
umphcations for our report if we become aware of any apparent nents or materzal cies with the financial statemnents Our responsibilities do
not extend to any other information We read the Drectors’ Report and consider the implications for our report 1f we become aware of any apparent
rmisstatements within it

Basis of audit opmion

We conducted our audit m accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices Board An audit mefudes
examination, on a test basis of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures 1n the financial statements It also n¢ludes an assessment of the sigmficant
estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the
group's and company's eireum Ty applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our aud:t 50 as 10 obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary i order to provide us with sufficient
evidence to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from matenal msstaterent, whether caused by fraud or other trregulanty or error
In forming our opumon we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information 1n the financial statements

Opuion
In our oprmon

» the group financsal statements give a true and fair view, 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU of the state of the group's affawrs as at 16 September
2006 and of us profit for the year then ended,

» the parent company financial statements give a true znd faur view, i accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, of the state of the parent
company’s affawrs as ai 16 September 20806

» the financial statements have been properly prepared m accordance with the Comparues Act 1985 and

« the formanoen given in the Directors’ Report 15 consistent wth the financial statements

g, bt O

KPMG Audit Pl
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditor

8 Salisbury Square
London

EC4Y BBB

12 Apnl 2007




Consolidated income statement

for the year ended 16 September 2006 Before
excephonal Exceptional
tems * items Totat 2005
2006 2006 2006 Restaed
Contizuing Operations Note £m £m £m £m
Revenae 1 5,99 B 59% 5622
Operating costs before P | 1terns 2 (5472) - (5472) {5,079
Impairment of property, plant & equipment 10 - (64} (64) -
Restructunng costs 2 - 33) 33) -
524 [ 427 543
Share of profit after tax from jownt ventures and associates 12 10 - 10 7
Profits less losses on sale of property, plant & equipment 10 - 10 20
Operating profit 544 Leg) 7 570
Adjusted operating profit 1 575 - 575 575
Profits less losses on sale of property, plant & equipment 10 - 10 20
Amortisation of mtangibles 9 41) “@n Qs
Excer 1 items - o {97) -
Profit less Josses on sale of busmesses 24 4 - ) {y
Provtsion for loss on of an op 8) - ®) “n
Proflt before interest 1 532 [L4)] 435 522
Financial mcome 4 225 - 125 204
Financial expenses 5 (220) - {220) (237)
Profit before taxation 537 N 440 439
Adjusted profit before taxauon 580 - 580 542
Profits less losses on sale of property plant & equipment 14 - 10 20
Amornsation of intangibles (41) - (41} 25
Exceptonal items - o7 on -
Profit less losses on sale of businesses @) - (4) (§)]
Provision for loss on of an op (8) - (8) (47)
Taxanon -UK (94) pi] {65) {67}
- Qverseas (51} - (51) (59}
7 1145) 29 (116) (126}
Profit for the perod 392 (68) 324 363
Atiribatable to
Equity shareholders 385 (68) nz 356
Munonty interests - equity 7 - 7 7
Profit for the pertod 23 392 {68) 324 363

* Refer to accounting policy on page ¢




Consolidated balance sheet
at 16 September 2006

2005
2006 Restated
Note £m £m
Non current assets
Intangible assets 9 1,480 1,090
Property plant & equipment 10 2479 2,255
Biologicat assets n 46 -
Investments 1n Joint ventures 12 54 36
Investments 1n associates 12 15 15
Employee benefits assets 13 169 95
Deferred tax assets 14 80 76
Other recervables 15 480 67
Total non—current assets 4,803 3,634
Current assets
Assets classified as held for sale 16 53 9
Inventories 17 681 556
Buological assets 1 51 -
Trade and other recevables 15 904 659
Other nvestments 18 53 269
Cash and cash equivalents 1% 283 777
Totzl current assets 2,025 2270
TOTAL ASSETS 6,828 5904
Current habilities
Liabilities classified as held for sale 16 an -
Interest-bearing loans and overdrafis 20 (180) {83)
Trade and other payables 21 (1,605) (1,521)
Income tax (1e1) (102)
Provisions 22 (49) (61)
Total current babul {1,946) {1,767)
Non current abilities
Interest-bearng foans 20 176) (174)
Income tax - 4)
Provisions 2 (21) 29
Deferred tax hiabilities 14 {398) (232)
Employee benfits labelities 13 37 (13)
Total non-carrent bablities (632) (452)
TOTAL LIABILITIES {2,578) {2,219
NET ASSETS 4,250 3,685
Equity
Called up share capital 23 22 2
Share prermum account 23 192 192
Capital reserve 23 283 -
Other reserves 23 1 1
Translation reserve 23 (44) 31
Hedging reserve 23 6) -
Retained earnings 23 3,578 3,410
4,026 3,656
Munonty mterests 23 224 29
TOTAL EQUITY 4,180 1,685

The financial statements on pages 6 te 43 were approved by the board of directors on 12 Apnl 2007 and were signed on 11s behalf by




Consolidated cash flow statement

for the year ended 16 September 2006 2005
2006 Restated
£m fm
Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before taxation 440 439
Add back non-operating items
Profits less losses on sale of property plant & equipment 10y (20
Profits less losses on sale of businesses 4 1
Provision for loss on terminanon of an operation 8 47
Exceptional yems ” -
Finaneial income (225) {204
Financial expenses 220 237
Adjnstments for
Share of profit from jomnt ventures and associates (10) %3}
Amortisation 41 25
Depreciation 177 161
Pension cost less coninbunons 130 (8)
Increase in mventornes 9 (25)
Increase in recetvables (188) {5)
Increase/{dectease) i payables 68 (14}
(Decrease)/increase 1n provisions (62) -
Cash generated from operations 530 673
Income taxes pad (96) (128)
Net cash from operatng activities 44 545
Cash flows from investing activities
Drndends received from joint ventures 1 2
Dnadends recetved from associates 3 2
Purchase of property, plant & equipment 432) (403)
Purchase of mtangibles ay -
Sale of property, plant & equpment 181 »
Purchase of subsidhiary undertakings {496) (1,130)
Sale of subsidary undertakimgs - 8
Purchase of joint ventures and associates - (18)
Interest recerved 112 95
Loan repayment from jomt venture - 51
Net cash from investing activities (644) {1,354)

Cash flows from financing activities

Dhvidends paid 10 mirtorines {6) (L))
Thwidends paid 1o shareholders (180) (150)
Interest paid (116) (133)
Decrease tn other current asset mvestments 216 273
Fuancing
{Decrease)/increase in short term loans from parent company (151) 777
{D )/decrease tn long term d ts with parent (403) 14
(Decrease)increase in short-term loans (k3] 1
{Decrease)/increase n long term loans - -
Inflow from 1ssue of share capital 283 6
Net eash from financing sctivities {395) 784
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {605) 2%
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginaing of the penod 42 755
Effect of 1s 1n foreign exchang (5) 12
Cash and ¢ash equivalents at the end of the perlod 132 742




Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense

for the year ended 16 September 2006 2005
2006 Restaed
£m £m
‘Actuanal gams/(losses) losses on defined benefit schemnes 43 (6}
Deferred tax associated with defined benefit schemes (12) -
Effect of movements in foreign exchange (76) 32
Tax on effect of movements in foreign exchange - (¥}
Movement of cash flow hedging positton (13) -
Net {lossYgan recogmsed directly in equity (58) 25
Profit for the period 34 363
Total recogmsed Income and expense for the period 266 338
Adyustments relaung 1o adoption of IAS 32 and 1AS 39 on 18 September 2005 {Equity sharcholders) T -
273 388

Attributable to
Equity shareholders 260 330
Minority interests 6 -3
266 388




Signmificant accounting policies
for the year ended 16 September 2006

ABF Investments plc {the "Company”) 15 a company domiciled in the United Kingdom The lidated (& 1 of the Company for the
year ended 16 September 2006 comprise those of the Compary and 1ts subsidiartes (together referred to as the "group"} and the group's interest m
associates and jountly controlled entibes

Statement of compliance
The consohidated financial have been prepared and appraved by the durectors n accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the EU ('Adopted IFRS")  These are the group's first lidated i | staternents prepared under Adopted [FRS and

[FRS 1 has been apphed An explanation of how the transition to IFRS has affected the reported financial positien, financial performance and cash
flows of the group 15 provided m note 33

The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financtal statements under UK Generally Accepted Accounnng Principles These are
presented on pages 44 to 46

Basis of preparation

The consotidated financial staternents are presented 1 sterling, rounded to the nearest million They are prepared on the hastorical cost basis except
that denvative financial mstruments, bislogical assets and other current investments are stated at their faur value  Non-current assets held for sale are
stated at the iower of camying amount and fair value less costs to selt

The preparation of financial statements under TFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumphons about the reported amounts
of agsets and liabiltties, income and expenses The estmates and associated assumptions are based on tistorical expenence  Actual results may duffer
from these estimates  Judg made by mar 11 the appl of IFRS that have a significant effect on the financial statements and
eshimates wath a segprficant risk of matenal adjustment next year are discussed in note 32

The estmates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an cngoing basis  Revision to accounting estumates are recogrised m the peniod wm which
the esnmates are revised

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings are prepared for the 52 weeks ended 16 September 2006, except that, to
avoid delay in the preparanon of the consctidated financaal statements, those ef Australia, New Zealand, China, Potand and the North and South
Amencan subsidiary undertakings are made up to 31 August 2006 Adjustments are made for sigmificant tr or events g between 31
August and 16 September

The accounting policies set out below have been applied to all periods presented except where the policy relates to the implementation of the
followmg Adopted IFRS, as permitted by IFRS 1

Business combinations — the provisions of IFRS 3 have been apphied from 3 September 2004 The net carrying value of goodwill at 18 September
2004, after adjustment to include the acquisiion of the US Herbs & Spices business on 3 September 2004 under IFRS, has been deemed to be the
cost at 19 September 2004,

Fnancial instruments — the provasions of LAS 32 and IAS 39 have been adopted from 18 September 2005 Comparatives have not been restated,

Cumulative translation differences ansing on consehdabion of subsidianes — [AS 21 req) such dafferences to be held in a separate reserve rather
than mcluded m the profit and loss reserve under UK GAAP The translation reserve has been deemed to be nil on 19 September 2004

Employee benefits - pursuant to IAS 19, all cumulative actuaniat gains and losses in relation to employee benefit schemes were recogmsed as af the
date of transition of 19 September 2004, and

Non-current assets held for sale and dsscontinued operations - IFRS 5 has been early adopted from 19 September 2004

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the results of the Company and all of its subsidiary undertakings from the date that control commences
to the date that control ceases The consohidated financial statements also include the group’s share of the results of its joint ventures and associates
on an equity-accounted basis from the point at which jont control or significant mfluence respecuvely commences, to the date that 1t ceases

Subsidiary undertakings are entities controlled by the Company Contrel exists when the Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the
financial and operatmg policies of an enhity 50 as 1o obtamn benefits from 115 activiues

Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the group has jownt control established by contractual agreement
Associates are those entines m which the group has significant influence, but not contred, over the financial and operating policies

Business combmations

On the acquisition of a business or an wnierest 1n a Jomt venture or associate, fair vatues are attmbuted to the 1dentifiable assets, habilines and
contmgent habilines acquired, reflectng conditions at the date of acquisinon  Adjustmens to fawr values include thosc made 1o bnng accountng
pelicies nto line with those of the group

Revenue

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods and services dehivered 10 customers, excluding sales taxes  Revenue s recogmsed when the nsks
and rewards of the underlying products have been substantally transferred to the customer Revenue is stated net of price discounts, certain
promotional activities and similar items

Borrowng costs
Borrowing costs are accounted for on an accruals basis in the income statement using the effective interest method

Excephional items

Excepticnal iierns are defined as items of income and expenditure whach are | and wnusual in nature and which are considered to be of such
sigmificance that they requure separate disclosure on the face of the mcome staternent m accordance with paragraphs 86 and 87 of [AS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements




Significant accounting policies continued

Foreign currencies

En mdmidual companses, transactions i forergn cursencies are recorded at the rate of exchange at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and
liabalthies m foreign currencies are translated at the rate prevailing at the balance sheet date  Any resulting differences are taken to the income
stalement

On consohidation, assets and ltabilitres of foreign operanons that are denomunated 1n foreign currencies are translated into sterlng at the rate of
exchange at the balance sheet date Income and expense items are translated o sterling at weighted average rates of exchange other than substantial
transact which are transtated at the rate of exchange on the date of the transaction

Iniferences ansing from the retranslanon of openng net assets of group companies, together with differences ansing from the restatement of the net
results of group companies from average or actual rates, 1o Tatés at the halance sheet date, are taken to the translation reserve

Pensions and other post employment benefits

The group’s pnncipat penston funds are defined benefit plans  In addition the group has defined contnbution plans and other unfunded post
employment liabshities For defined benefit plans, the amount ¢harged 1 the tncome statement 15 the cost of vested benefits accruing to employees
gver the year plus any benefit imp: granted to members by the group duning the year 1t also includes a credit equevalent to the group’s
expected return on penszon plan assets over the year offset by a charge equal to the expecied mierest on plan habilines over the year The difference
between the market value of plan assets and the present valug of plan habilities 15 disclosed as an asset or hability on the consohdated balance sheet
Any related deferred tax (to the extent 1t 15 recoverable} is disclosed separately on the consohidated balance sheet  Any actuanal gains or losses are
recogmsed immediately 1n the statement of recognised income and expense

Contributions payable by the group 1n respect of defined contribution plans are charged to operating profit as incurred

Share based payments employee benefiis

The Share Incentive Plan allows executives to receive an allocation of shares to be received at the end of 2005/6 subject to attainment of certamn
financial performance entena  The fair value of the shares to be awarded 1s recogmsed as an employee expense with a cormesponding wicrease i
equty The farr value 15 measured at grant date and spread over the peniod dunng which the executives become unconditionally entitled to the shares
The fair value of the shares allocated 13 measured taking 1nte account the terms and ¢conditions upon which the shares were allocated The amount
recogrused s an expense 15 adjusted to reflect the actual oumber of shares that vesy

The Share Option Scheme (1994) and Executive Share Option Scheme (2000) allow executives 10 acquire shares of the Company  The faur value of
options granted 15 recogmsed as an employee expense with a corresponding increase m equity  The farr value 1s measured at grant date and spread
over the perwd during which the executives become uncondiionally enaitled to the options The fair value of the options granted 1s measured using 2
pinomial latuce model takmg into account the terms and conditiens upon whuch the opttons were granted The amount recogrused as an expense 1s
adyusted 1o reflect the actual number of share options that vest except where forfeiture 15 only due 1o share pnces not achieving the thresheld for
vesung

Income tax
Income tax on the profit or loss for the perod comprises current and deferred tax [ncome tax 1s recogmsed in the mcome statement except to the
cxtent that 1t relates to items taken directly to reserves

Current tax 15 the tax expected to be payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substanhally enacted at the balance sheet
date together with any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax ts provided using the balance sheet liability method, providing for temporary differences between the camying amounts of assets and
liabilities for finangial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes The following temporary differences are not provided for the
mitial recognition of goodwill, the inttial recogr of assets or hahiltties that affect nether accounting nor taxable profit other than those acquired
In a business combmation, and differences relatng to mvestments 1 subsidianes to the extent that they will probably not reverse m the foreseeable
future The amount of deferred tax provided ts based on the expected manner of reahsation or settlement of the carying amount of assets and
habilies, using tax rates enacted or substanhally enacted at the balance sheet date

A deferred tax asset 18 recognused only to the extent that 1t 1s probable that future taxable profits wilk be avarlable agawnst which the asset can be
uttlised Deferred tax assets are rectuced to the extent that 1t s no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised

Additional ncome taxes that anse from the distnbution of dividends are recogmsed at the same tme as the hability to pay the related dividend

Financial instroments

The group has adopted the exemphon granted by IFRS 1 that IAS 32 and 39 need not be applied to the comparatve peniod  Consequently the 2005
disclosure provided for financial mstruments (note 26) 1s 1n accordance with UK GAAF  Under UK GAAP, forward foreygn exchange contracts
hedgung transactional exposures were revalued at year end exchange rates with net unreatised gamns and losses being defirred 10 match the matunty of
the underlying exposures The accounting pohcies descnibed below for financial instrumenits are applicable from 18 September 2005 and are
accordance with IFRS  The effect of adophing these standards was to recogmuse a net derivative asset of £7m m the opening batance sheet (refer to
Note 33}

Derwvanve financral instruments

The group uses denvative financal instruments to hedge its exposure to fluctuatons m foreign cxchange and witerest rates and also to changes 1 the
price of certain commodities used n the manufacture of 1ts products

Denvative financial instruments are recogrused i the balance sheet at theur fair value calculated using either discounted cash flows or option pricing
models consistently applied for sumular types of mstrument  Both techniques take inta consideration assumptions based on market data Changes in

the fair value of denvatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are charged or credited to the ncome staternent

The purpose of hedge accounting 1s to mitigate the unpact en the group of changes m exchange or mterest rates and commexitty prices, by matching
the impact of the hedged item and the hedging mstrument m the 1ncome statement  To qualify for hedge accounting the hedging refationship must
meet several conditions with respect to documentanon, probability of occumrence, hedge effectiveness and relability of At P of
the transaction the group douments the relationship between hedgmg mstruments and hedged itets, as well as its nsk management objective and
strategy for undertaking vanous hedge transactions  This process meludes hnkang all denvatves designated as hedges 10 specific assets and Liablites
or to specific firm com or forecast tr s The group also documents 15 assessraent, bath at the hedge meeption and oz a quarterly
basis, as to whether the denvatives that are used 1n hedging transactions have been, and are likely to continue to be highty effective

The group designates denvatives that qualify as hedges for accountmg purposes as esther (a} a hedge of the faur value of a recogmsed asset or Liability
{farr vatue hedge), (b) a hedge of a forecast transaction or firm eommutment (cash flow hedge), of (c) a hedge of 2 net investment 1n a foreign entity

The method of recogmsmg the resulting gains or losses from movernents m fair values 1s dependent on whether the denvative contract 15 desighated to
hedge a specific nsk and quahfies for hedge accounting

Where a denvative financial mnstrument 15 designated as 3 hedge of the vanabity m cash flows of a ughly probable forecast transaction, the effective
part of any gamn or loss on the denvateve financial wnstrument is recognsed directly m the hedging reserve The neflective part of any gain or loss1s
recognised 1n the meome statement unmed:ately




Significant accounting policies continued

When the forecast transachot subsequently results i the recognstion of an asset o iability, the associated cumulative gan or 1085 15 removed from
reserves and 15 inchuded m the mbal measurement of the non financial asset or habihity Otherwise the cumulative gain or Loss 1s removed from
reserves and 15 recogmsed 1n the wcome statement at the same time 35 the hedged transactien To the extent that any part of the hedge 15 ineffectve,
the gan of loss on that part 1 recognised n the mcome statement

Net mvestment hedges take the form of exther foreign currency borrowings or dervatives  All foreign exchange gains or losses anang on translation
of net investments are recorded m equity and sncluded i the wanslation reserve  Monetary iabilihes used as a net investment hedge are revatued at
closing exchange rates wath resuling gams or losses taken to equity Foreign exchange contracts hedging net v estments 1n overseas busmesses are
revalued at fair value Fair value movements on effective hedges are taken to equity with any ineffectiveness recogmsed m the income statement

Denvatives embedded m other financial instruments or other non-financial host contracts are treated as separate denvatives when their nsk and
charactenstics are not closely related to those of the host contract [n these curcumstances the host contract 1s not carnied at fair value with unrealised
gans or losses on the denvative reported 1n the income statement for the penod

Non-dertvative financial instruments

Funaneial assets and financial liabilihes are measured winally at fair value, plus directly atmbutable transaction costs, and thereafter at amortised cost
except for current investments  The group has designated seme current mvestments *financial assets at fair value through profit and loss' because
these instruments are managed, and their performance 1s evaluated, on a far value basis 1n accordance with the group's sk management and
mvestment strategy  Investments other than those designated as 'at fair value through the profit and toss” are classified as 1nvestrments avaitable for
sate, where gawns and losses ansing from changes n fair value are recogrused duectly 1m equity, until the secunty 18 disposed of or 1s determmed 10 be
mpaired at which ime the cumulative gain or loss previcusly recogmsed u equity 13 tncluded in the income statement for the pencd

Funancial assets are derecogmsed when the contractual nghts to the cash flows expire or the contractual nghts to receive the cash flows are
transferred  The contractual nghts to recerve cash flows are transferred when substanually all the nisk and rewards of ownership of the financal
asset arc transferred Financial liabilihies are derecogrissd when the obligation specified m the contract 15 discharged, cancelled or expires

Comparanive aecounnng policy for 2005
The following accounting policy has been apphied to the key financial wstruments used by the group for the year ending 17 September 2003, in
accordance with UK GAAP

Forward foreign exchange contracts and currency options are used to hedge forecast transactional cash flows and accardingly, any gans or Josses on
these contracts are recogmsed in the profit and loss account when the underlying transaction 1s settled Denvauve commodity coniracts are used to
hedge commutted purchases or sale of commadities and accordmgly, any pains or losses on these contracts are recogmsed in the profit and loss
account 1n the same accounting penod as the underlying purchase or sale Gams or losses on hedging instruments that are cancelled due to the
termunation of the underlying exposure are taken to the profit and loss account immediately

Property, plant & equipment

Items of property plant & equipment are stated at cost less accunulated depreciation and inpairment charges

Depreciation 1s charged 1o the mcome statement on a straight-hine basis over the estimated useful lives of tems of preperty, plant and equipment
sufficient to reduce therm 1o their estimated residual value Land 1s not depreciated The estumated usefisl lives are generally decmed to be no Jonger
than

« freehold buldings 66 yzars
- plant and equipment, fixtures and fittings - sugar factories 20 years

- other operations 12 years
- vehicles 8 years
Biological assets

Cane roots and grow ng cane are valued at fair value determined on the following bases
- cane 10015 - the escalated average cost, using appropnate inflation related mcicies, of each year of planting adjusted for the remaning expected hfe

- gr g cane the d content valued at the estimated sucrose pnce for the foltowing season, less the estimated costs for harvestng and transport

Leases

Where the group has substantiaily all the nisks and rewards of ownership of an asset that 15 subject to a lease, the lease 1s treated as a finance lease
Other leases are treated as operating leases Femance leases are stated at the lower of fair value and present value of minimum lease payments less
accumulated depreciation and impamment  Payments made under operatng leases are recopmsed 1n the income statement on 2 straight-line basis over
the term of the iease The benefit of lease incentives recerved 1s recogrused n the meome statemnent over the life of the lease

Tntangible assets other than goodwill

Iniangible assets that are acquired by the group and have a fimte hfe are stated at cost less aceumulated amortisation and umpairment charges
Amorhsation 1s charged to the ncome statement on a straight line basis over the esmated useful lives of mtangible assets from the date they are
available for use The estimated useful lives are as follows

- customer relationships - up to 5 years
- grower centracts ~upto 10 years
- technology and brands - upto 15 years

Goodwill

Al busmess combinations are accounted for by applying the purchase method  Goodwill represents amounts arising on acquisinon of subsideary
undertakings, associates and Joint ventures In respeci of busmess acquisinons that have oceurred since 3 September 2004, goodwall represents the
excess of the purchase considerat:on over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired, including separately identified intangible assets

In respect of acquisit:ons prior to this date, goodwill 15 meluded on the basis of its deemed cost, represented by the net book value recorded under
previous GAAP  The classification and ng of b L that accurred prior to 3 September 2004 has not been
reconsidered in prepanng the group’s opening IFRS balance sheet at 18 September 2004

Goodwill 15 not amorhised but 15 tested for tmpairment at each balance sheet date

Research and development
Expeaditure on h activities 1 with the prospect of gamng new scientfic or lechnucal knowledge and understanding 15 recognrsed m
the income statement as an expense as incurred

Expenditure on development actities, whereby research findings are applied to a plan or design for the production of new or substantiaily umproved
products and processes, 1s capitalised 1f the product or progess 18 techatcally and commercially feasible and the group has sufficient resources o
complete development  The expenditure caputalised mcludes the cost of materals, direct labous and an appropriate proportion of overheads Other
development expenditure 15 recogmused in the mcome statement as an expense as meurred  Capitalised development expenditure 15 stated at cost less
accumulated amorusation and impairment charges



Significant accounting policies continued

Impairment
The carnyng amounts of the group's assets, other than mventones and deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine
whether there 15 any indication of unpairment  f any such mdication exists, the asset s recoverable amount 15 estunated

For goodwill the recoverable amount 15 estunated at each balance sheet date

An umpairment charge 18 recogrused whenever the camying amount of an asset o7 its ¢ash-generating unit exceeds 1ts recoverable amount  Impayment
charges zre recognised 1n the income staternent within operating costs

Impairment charges recognised 1n respect of cash-generating unuts are allocated first to reduce the carryng amount of any goodwill allocated to
cash generating umits (group of umts} and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the urat (or group of uriis) on a pro rata basis

Goodwill was tested for unpaiment at 18 September 2004 the date of transition to IFRS, even though no indication of irnpatrment exsted

Calculanen of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of assets 15 the greater of their net selling price and value in use I assessing value muse the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current narket assessments of the tme value of money
and the nsks specific to the asset  For an asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount 13 determuned
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset betongs.

Reversals of impairment

An impaitment loss in respect of goodwill 1s not reversed

Ln respect ot other assets, an umpasment charge 13 reversed 1f there has been a change in the estimates used to determine recoverable amount

An umpairment charge 1$ reversed only to the extent that the asset s camying amount does not exceed the carmying amount that would have been
determuned, net of depreciation or antertisanen, if no unpaument loss had been recognised

Inoventores

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes raw matenals, dimect labour and expenses, an appropnate proportion
of producuon and other overheads, but not borrowing costs  Cost 15 cafculated on a first-in first-owt bagis

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnse cash balances, call deposits znd investments with ongmal maturties of three months or less  Bank overdrafts
that are repayable on demand and form an wtegral part of the group's cash gt are tncluded as a comp of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the staternent of cash flow statement

a4 Sad

New rds and interp fons not yet adop
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not yet effective for the year ended 16 September 2006 and have
not been applied (1 prepanng these lidated financial stat 1

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures and the A dy 16 145 I Pr of Fi R Capiral Disclosures roguire
extensive disclosures about the significance of financial instruments for an entity’s financial position and performance, and qualitative and
quantitative disclosures on the nature and extent of nsks  IFRS 7 and amended IAS |, which become mandatory for the group s 2007 financial
statements, will require extensive addional disclosures wath respect the group's financial instruments and share capitat

IFRIC 7 Apphang the Restatement Approach under IAS 29 Financial Reporting i Hyperinflatuonary K dd the app of 1AS 29
when an y first b hyperfl y 2nd 1n particular the accountng for deferred tax  [FRIC 7 which becomes mandatory for the
group’s 2008 fi 1 13 DOt EAp J 10 have any mpact on the consolidated financial statements

IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives requires that a reassessment of whether embedded denvative should be separated from the
underiying host contract should be made only when there are changes to the contract  IFRIC 9 which becomes mandatory for the group s 2007
financtal staternents, 15 not expected 1o have any impact on the ¢ lidated financial

IFRIC 10 {nterim Financial Reporung and Impaumens prolubits the reversal of an imparment loss recognised in a previous wntenum penod 1n respect
of goodwill, an investment in an equity Instrument or a financial asset camed at cost  IFRIC 10 wall become mandatory for the group’s 2008 financial
slatements, and will apply 1o goodwill, investments in equity Instruments, and financial assets carmed at cost prospectively from the date that the group
first applied the measuretnent criteria of [AS 36 and LAS 39 respectively (1 &, 18 September 2005) IFRIC 1015 not expected to have any sigmficant
impact on the consolidated financial statements

The group does not constder that any other standards of mterpretations 1ssued by the [ASB, but nol yet applicabie, wall have a sigmificant tmpact on the
lidated financial




Notes forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 16 September 2006

Segmental analysis

Segment eporting 15 presented in respect of the group's busmess and geographical segments  The pnmary format, business segments, 1s based on the
group's management and ntemal reporting structure and combings businesses with common charactenstics  Inter-segment pricing 15 determined on
an arm's length basis  Segment results, assets and habihties metude ems directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis Unallocated items compnse mainly corporate assets and exp Segment capital exp e 1s the total cost incurred dunng the
penod to acquire segment assets that are expected 1 be used for more than one year

Business segments
The group 1s compnsed of the following business segments

- Grocery The manufacture of grocery products, including hot b ges, sugar & swi , vegetable oils, bread & baked goods, ethnic
foods, herbs & spices and meat & dairy products which are sold mio reta, wholesale and foodservice businesses

- Pnmary Food The processing of sugar beet and sugar cane for sale to tndustnal users and to Silver Spoon which 18 metuded in the grocery
segment

- Agnculture The manufacture of ammal feeds and the provision of other products and serices for the agnculiure sector
- Ingred The facture of bakers yeast, bakery mgredients, specralty proteins, enzymes, hipid technologies and polyols
- Retail Buying and merchandasing value clothing and accessories through the Primark and Penneys retatl chains
Geographical segments
The secondary format presents the revenues profits and agsess for the following geograptucal segments
- Unuted Kingdom
- Europe Middle East & Afnica
The Amencas
Asia Pasific

Geographucally segmented revenues are shown by reference to the geographical locaton of customers Segment assets are based on the geographical
loeznen of the assets

Revenue Adjusted Operaung Profiy
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m im £m fm
Buosmess segments.
Grocery 2,656 2,590 185 185
Prumary food 671 700 115 166
Agneulture 631 735 111 20
Ingredients 729 583 82 65
Retail 1,309 1,006 185 140
Central - - 3] I
5,996 5614 575 575
Businesses disposed
Agriculture - 8 - -
5,996 5,622 578 575
Geographica) segments
United Kingdom 3,003 2,815 295 134
Europe, Middle East & Afnca 746 720 73 T2
The Americas 1,210 1,102 124 102
Asiz Pacific 1,037 976 83 67
5,996 5614 575 575
Buswnesses disposed
United Kmngdom - 8 - -
5,996 5,622 578 575




Notes forming part of the financial statements continued

1 Segmental analysis - for the year ended 16 September 2006

Business segments Primary
Grocery Food Agnculture Ingredients Retail Central Eliminations Total
£m £m £m £m £m im £m £m
Revenue from continuing operations 2,675 765 631 T75 1,309 - {1607 5,996
Internal revenue (1%) (95) - (46) - 160 -
Revenue from external 2,656 671 631 729 1,309 - - 5996
Adjusted operatng profit 185 115 16 82 185 (&3] - 575
Exceptionals 97) - - - - 97)
Amortisation of mtangbles {12) - - 29) - - {41)
Profits less losses on sale of property,
plant & equipment 4 4 {1} - 2 1 - 10
Profits less losses on sale of busmesses 3 (2) - 4 - 1 - 4)
Provision for loss on ter of an operation - - - 3) - - (8)
Profit before financial mcome, expenses and
taxaton 180 20 15 47 179 {6} - 435
Fmancial mcome 225 - 225
Financialt expenses (220 - {220}
Income tax expense (116} - {116}
Profit for the penod 180 20 15 47 179 (117} - 324
Segment assets (ex¢] mvestments i assoclates
and Jount ventures) 1782 1,497 158 1,010 1,302 425 - 6,174
Inv n associates and jownt ventures 7 & 27 29 - - - 69
Segment assets 1789 1,503 185 1,039 1302 425 - 6,243
Cash and cash equivalents 283 . 283
Employee benefits asset 169 - 169
Deferred tax assets 80 - 80
Other mvestments 53 - 53
Segment liabihities (303) {338) (48) {113) {216} (844) (1,862)
Interest bearng loans and overdrafts (180) - (180)
Income tax (101) - {101y
Deferred tax habihttes (398) - (398)
Employee benefits hability 3N - 37
Net assets 1 486 1,165 137 926 1,086 {550) - 4,250
Capital expenditure 84 55 6 43 303 - - 496
Depr 71 36 7 30 33 - - 177
Amortisation 12 - - 29 - - - 41
Impairment - ¢4 - - - - - o4
Other sigmificant non cash expenses 30 - - 10 - - 40
Geographical segments Europe,
United  Middle East The Asia
Kingdom & Afnca Americas Pacific Elnmunations Total
£m £m £m im £m £m
Revenue from external customers 3003 746 1,210 1,037 - 5,996
Segment assets 2,930 1,533 1,023 757 - 5,243
Capital expenditure 357 52 30 57 - 496
Depreciation 101 18 26 32 - 177
Amortisation 4 7 18 12 - 41
Impaurment 64 - - - - 64
QOther significant ron-cash expenses 40 - - - - 40

Other sapnificant non-cash expenses mclude a provision for £30m for costs associated with the closure of two UK sugar factones, announced on 4 July 2006
(see neie 10), and a provision of £10m for costs associated with the termunation of Littlewoods




Notes forming part of the financial statements continued

1 Segmentzal analysis - for the year ended 15 September 2005

Business segments Primary
Grocery Food Agnculture Ingredients Retal Central Ehminations Total
£fm £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue from continmng operations 2 604 302 747 620 1,006 - (165) 5614
Buginesses dusposed - - 11 - - - (3) 8
Internal revenue (14) (102) {13) (37} - - 168 -
Revenue from extemnal customers 2,590 700 743 583 1,006 - - 5,622
Adjusted operating profit 185 166 20 65 140 (5 - 575
Amortisaton of iniangibles (5) - - (20) - - - 25)
Profits less losses on sale of propetty, -
plant & equipment m 24 [£)] - - - - 20
Profits less losses on sale of businesses 1 - - - (5) - U]
Provision for loss on termination of an operation - - - - . @7 - 47
Profit before financial income, expenses and
taxation 189 190 20 45 140 (53) - 522
Fuancial income 204 - 204
Fmancial expenses 23N - (237
Income tax expense (126) - (126)
Profit for the period 180 190 20 45 140 (212) - 363
Segment assets (excl mvestments m associates
and jomt ventures) 1,756 663 160 923 872 262 - 4636
Investment 1 associates and joant ventures 5 5 25 16 - - 51
Segment assets 1,761 668 185 939 872 262 - 4,687
Cash and cash equvalents 777 777
Employee benefits asset 95 - 95
Deferred tax assets 76 - 76
Other mvestments 269 - 269
Segment habilities (348) {96) (33) 99) {230) (SR . (1,785)
Interest bearing loans and overdrafts (83} - (83)
Income tax {106} - {108)
Deferred tax habilities (232} - (232)
Employee benefits liability {13 - (13)
Net assets §413 572 130 840 642 38 - 3,685
Caputal expenditure 109 38 7 25 228 - - 407
Depreciation 68 35 6 24 28 - - 161
Amortisation 5 - - 20 - - - 25
Other significant non-cash expenses 14 - - 5 - 47 - 66
Geographical segments Europe,
United  Middle East The Asia
Kingdom & Africa Americas Pacific Eliminations Tatal
£m £m £m £m im £m
Revenue from exiemal customers 23824 720 1,102 976 - 5,622
Segment assets 2,305 717 954 711 - 4687
Capuitat expenditure 263 54 21 59 - 407
Dep 94 15 24 28 - 161
Amortisation 2 10 10 3 - 25
Other sipmificant nos-cash expenses 51 5 ] 2 - 56

Other significant non-cash expenses includes a provesion of £47m for costs associated with the termination of Littlewoods



Notes forming part of the financial statements continued

2 Operatng costs and gross profit

Before
exceptional  Exceptionsl
ltems tems Total
2006 2006 2006 2005
Note £m fm £m £m
Operating costs
Cost of sales (including amortisation of intangibles) 4,338 %7 4,435 4,054
[nstbution costs 770 - 170 722
Admimstraticn expenses 364 - 164 303
5472 97 5,569 3079
Gross Profit 524 97 427 543
Operating costs are stated after charging/(crediting)
Employee benefits expense 3 837 767
Amcrtisation of intangibles 41 25
Depreciation of owned property plant & equipment 177 161
Operating lease payments under property leases 56 31
Operanng lease payments for hure of plant and equipment 6 6
Other operating income 35) 20)
Research and development expenditure 12 11
Tmpairment of trade recervables m 3
Foreign exchange gams on operating activities [&)] {13)
Foreign exchange losses on operaung achvings 5 15
Group audit remunecation 30 28
Non-audit remuneration
UK -tax 9 10
- transaction due dihigence 02 07
- other assurance 08 11
19 28
Overseas - tax 10 06
- other assurance a5 -
14 34

On 4 July 2006 the group announced 1ts intention to ¢lose two UK sugar factones following completion of the 2006/7 campaign As a result the
group has recorded an exceptional charge of £97m of which £64m relates to the impairment of property, plant & equipment and £33m to restructuring
charges Details of the mmpatrment charges are disclosed 1n note 10 The restructuning charge relates to redundancy costs of £17m and other costs to
whuch the group 18 comumtted primarily compensation of £16m payable to growers



Notes forming part of the financial statements continued

3 Employees
2006 2005
Average number of employees
Umited Kingdom 24,175 2835
Europe, Middle East & Aftiea 4,917 4,830
The Amencas 4,544 4,196
Asia Pacific 12,965 12,420
46,601 42,281
£m fm
Employee benefits expense
Wages and salanes 714 657
Secial secunty contnbutions 57 50
Contributions to defined contnbution schemes 21 1%
Charge for defined benefit schemes 45 41
837 767
4 Fmancial mcome
Note 2006 2005
Interest income on bank deposits and investments 28 40
Interest recerved on deposits with parent company 7% 46
Gan on ement of other mv ts at fawr value through profit and loss 1 5
Foreign exchange gain on financing activities 1 -
Expected return on pension scheme assets 13 116 113
225 204
5 Fmancial expenses
Note 2006 2005
Interest expense on bank loans 4 6
Interest expense on short-term loans from parent company 94 112
Interest expense on other loans 16 16
Foreign exchange losses on financing actvities 2 -
Interest expense on finance leases 1 -
Interest charge on pension scheme habilines 13 103 103
220 237




Notes formung part of the financial statements continued

6. Remuneration of directors

~

2006 2005
£000 £000
Directors emolwments 918 1,255
The aggregate of emoluments paid to the kaghest pard director was £747,000 (2005 £670 000}
Number of directors
2006 2005
Retirement benefits are accruing to the followmg number of directors under -
Defined benefit schemes 2 2
Income tax expense
2006 2005
£m £m
Current tax expense
UK - corporation tax at 30% (2005 30%) 42 69
Overseas  corporation tax 46 49
Over provided 1n prior years - {1)
88 17
Deferred tax expense
UK deferred tax 1l )
Overseas deferred tax 8 12
Ower provided in pnior years (1) (1}
Total ncome tax exp m 1ocome stat t 116 126
Reconcilation of effective tax rate
Profit before taxation 440 439
Less share of profit from jomt ventures and associates {10) (7
Profit before taxation excluding share of proflt from yont ventures and 430 482
Nommnal tax charge at UK corporation tax rate of 30% (2005 30%) 129 145
Lower tax rates on overseas earmimngs 23) (25)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 11 5
Utihsation of losses - 4]
Deferred tax not recogsed - 3
Adjustments in respect of pnior perniods (3] M
116 126
Dividends
2006 2005
£m £m
Interim dividends 180 150

The first intenun divadend of £100m was paid on 4 February 2006 The second interim dividend of £80m was pad on 21 July 2006 No final dividend 1s proposed



Notes forming part of the financial statements continued

9 Intangible assets

Caustomer Grower
Goodwill Technelogy Brands relationships Agreements Other Total
im fm £m £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 18 September 2004 485 - 45 - - - 530
Acquisitions through b combinations 291 173 ” i) - - 57
Effect of movements in foreign exchange [ E 2 1 - - 14
At 17 September 2005 782 178 126 29 - - 1,115
Acquisiions through business combmations 191 26 36 29 161 14 457
Other acquisitions - externally purchased - 5 1 - 4 10
Effect of movements i foreign exchange (22} (5} {5) (2) - {3) {37)
At 16 Septerber 2006 951 264 158 56 161 15 1,545
Amortisation and impairment
At 18 September 2004 - - - - -
Amortisation for the year - 1 9 5 25
At 17 September 2005 - 11 9 5 - - 25
Amortisation for the year - 19 15 7 41
Effect of movements i forgign exchange - ( - - - (1)
At 16 September 2006 - 29 pL] 12 - - 65
Net book value
Net book value at 18 September 2004 4835 - 45 - - - 530
Net book value at 17 September 2005 782 167 117 24 - 1,060
Net hook value at 16 September 2006 951 175 134 44 161 15 1,480
Amortisation charges and unpamment charges are recogmsed within operating costs i the income statement
Significant intangible assets detalls Remaming
Net book amaortisation
Descniphon value pertod
£m
Intangible assets ansing from US herbs and spices accuisttiion Brands 38 13 years
Intangble assels ansmg from Yeast and Bakery Ingredients acquisition Technology 139 13 years
Brands 51 13 years
Customer relatonships 17 3 years
Intangible assets ansmg from Illove Sugar Lumited acqusition Technalogy 6 § years
Brands 8 3 years
Customer relationships 25 § years
Grower Agreements 161 10 years
Other 13 4 years
1mpairment
Goodwill

As at 16 September 2006, the consolidated balance sheet inchuded goodwill of £951m  In accordance with the requirements of 1AS 36, fmpairment of
Assets goodwill 1s allocated to the group s cash genersting umits, or groups of cash generatmg unats, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the

business combination that gave nise to the poodwill as follows

2006 2005
Cash generating unit (CGU) or group of CGUs Priowary reportmg segment £m £m
ACH Grocery 208 216
AB Maur1 Ingredients 232 232
Twintngs/Ovaltae Grocery 60 60
Capullo Grocery 58 358
Illovo Primary 143 -
Other * Various 245 216

951 782

* The amount of goodwill allocated to each CGU or group of CGUs 15 not indvidually sigmificant

A CGU, or group of CGUs, to which goodwail has been allocated must be assessed for unpawrment annualty and whenever there 15 an
mdication of imparment

There have beent no ndications of impairment relating to the CGUs of groups of CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated and,
accordingly, the disclosures that follow relate to the imparrment test that 1s required to be conducted on an annual basis

* The camrying value of goodwill has been assessed with reference to vatue m uee to perpetutty reflecting the projected cash flows of each
of the CGUs or group of CGUs based on the most recent budget  Growth rates for the pentod not covered by the budget are based en a
range of growth rates that reflect the products, industnes and countries m which the relevant CGU or groups of CGUs operate

+ The key assumptions on whach the cash flow projections for the most recent budget are based relate to discount rates growth rates and
changes n selling expenses and direct cosis

+ The cash flow projections have been discounted using a range of rates that reflect the group's pre-tax cost of capital The rates used vary
between 8% and 11%

« The growth rates applied m the value in tse calculations for goodwill aliocated to each of the CGUS, or groups of CGUs, that &5
sigmificant to the total carrying amount of goodwall were n a range between 0% and 2 5%

« Changes m selimg price and direct costs are based on past results and expectations of fiture changes mn the market



Notes forming part of the financial statements continued

10 Property, plant & equipment

Laed Plant Fixtures Assets
and and and under
buildmgs machinery fithngs construchion Total
£m £m £m im im
Cost
At 18 September 2004 57 1478 307 43 2,560
Acquired through business combinations 478 96 ! 1 576
Other acquisitions 156 141 98 12 407
Businesses disposed {8) (24) 2 - (34)
Other cisposals 12 (52) (18) - 82)
Effect of movements in foreign exchange 0 29 3 42
At 17 September 2605 1,381 1668 86 64 3,499
Acquired through business combinations 47 124 5 5 131
Other acquisihons 25 72 250 a5 4382
Businesses disposed (1) (25) . (28)
Other disposals (149 (3Y] (12) - (230)
Transferred to non-current assets held for sale 27 2) - (29
‘Fransfers from assets under construction 22 61 2 (85)
Effect of n foreign exchang {12) (19) (2) {2) (35)
At 16 September 2006 1,284 1,810 669 77 3,340
Depreciabion and unpairment
At 18 September 2004 171 843 129 1143
Depreciation for the year 19 107 s 161
Businesses disposed (n (16} 2} (8]
Other disposals (¥] {37 (17 (61)
Effect of in foreign exchang: 2 18 - 20
At 17 September 2005 184 915 145 - 1,244
Depreciatton for the year 19 119 3¢ - 177
Impairment charge 23 41 - - 64
Businesses disposed 3) (23) - - (26)
Other disposats {2 (62) (1 - (75)
Transferred to non current assets held for sale ) (3] B - ¥
Effect of 1n foreign exch {2) (£4) - - {16)
At 16 September 2006 213 975 173 - 1,361
Net book value at 18 September 2004 586 635 178 48 1,447
Net book value at 17 September 2005 1,197 753 24} 64 2,255
Net book value at 16 September 2006 147 335 496 77 2479
2006 2005
£m £m
Net book value of finance lease assets 12 12
Non-depreciable land 72 77
Land and busldings at net bock value comprnse
- Freehold 871 258
- Long leasehold 151 169
Short leasehold 49 70
1,071 1197
Captial expenditure commutments contracted but not provaded for 158 77
Impairment
UK sugar operations
The reform of the EU sugar regime has impacted ad ly on the perfi of the group’s European sugar operations and 1s expegted to have

further adverse consequences ut the future  Management has considered the wnpact of the reform of the EU sugar regime on the group’s operanons
and on 4 July 2006 anncunced its mtention 10 ¢lose two UK, factones following the 2006/7 Campaign  As a result, the carrying value and useful Lives
of the factones to be closed have been assessed for impairment

The carrying value of each of the two factenes to be closed has been assessed separately for impatrment on the basis their value 1n use The cash flow
projections used for this purpose are based on the most recent budget resulting 1n an impawrment charge of £6dm being recognisad in the mcome
statement The impairment has been recognised as & depreciahion charge, recorded 1n operating costs 1n the income statement, and 15 mncluded within

the Pnmary Food segmemt



Notes forming part of the financial statements continued

Blological Assets
Current  Noo- current
growing cane
cane roots Total
£m £m £m
Carrylng Value
At 17 September 2005 - -
Acqured through business combinations 51 47 98
Effect of movements in foreign exchang: (1) (1)
At 16 September 2006 51 46 97
Cape roots
Area under cane as at 16 September 2006 Hectares
South Afnca 10,668
Malaw1 18,381
Zambia 11,030
Swanland 7946
Tanzama 8,003
Mozambique 3671
59,699
Growing cane
The following assumptions have been used in the determination of the estimated sucrose tonnage at 16 September 2006
South Africa Matawi Zambia Swazitand Tanzania Mozambique
Expected area to harvest (hectares) 6,173 18,072 10,948 7,572 7815 3,649
Estimated yield (lonnes cane/hectare) 690 1090 1180 1059 760 1021
Average matunty of cane 36 10% 66 67% 6667% 66 67% 50 00% 55 67%

Investments 1o joint ventures and associates

Shares Goodwill Total Shares
£m £m £m £m
At 18 September 2004 12 12 11
Addions 23 - 23 2
Profit for the penod 3 3 4
Dividends received (2} {2 2)
Goodwill ansing on acquisiion of new joint ventures - [ 6 -
Transfer 10 subsidiary (5} - {3} -
Disposals {1} () -
At 17 September 2005 30 [] 36 5
Addinons 5 5 2
Profit for the penod 5 5 5
Drndends received {1} {1 {3)
Goodwll ansing on acquisition of new joint ventures - H g -
Transfer from assocates 3 3 3)
Transfer to subsidiary {2) 2) -
Effect of movement in foreign exchange - - {1)
At 16 September 2006 40 14 54 15

Deetails of the principal joint ventures and associates are given on page 37

[ncluded in the consohidated financial statements are the followng items that erpresent the group's share of the assets, liabilties and profit of jount ventures and associates

Jount ventures Associates
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Non-current assets un 19 7 7
Current assets 95 kLl 4+ 53
Current habilines (76) (68) 35) 44
Non-current habilihes - . m (U]
Goodwill 14 5 - -
Net Assets 54 6 15 i5
Revenue 314 160 22 14
Expenses (308} (156) s @)
Taxahon [t}] ) @ @
Profit for the penod 5 3 5 4
Dwidends receved {0 &3] [£)] Q)
Transfer to retained eamings 4 L 2 2

2



Notes forming part of the financial statements continued

13 Employee sutitlements

The group operates pension schemes, the majonty of which are of the defined benefit type The group's principal UK defined benefit schemes are ¢losed to new
members, with defined contnbution arrangements 1 place for these members  The peasion costs in the UK for the defined benefit schemes are assessed

1n accordance with the advice of independent qualified actuanes using the projected unat method  For the defined contnbution schemes, the pension ¢osls

are the contnbutions payable

Actuznal gains and losses arising over the financial year are recopmsed immediately i the statement of recognised income and expenduture,
and are reflected in the bal sheet at §6 September 2006  Past service cost 13 recognised tmmediately to the extent that the benefits have already vested

The last actuanal valuations of the Bitish Sugar Pension Scheme and the Assaciated Brihsh Foods Pension Scheme were camed out as at
| October 2004 and 5 Apnl 2005 respectively At the valuation dates the total marker value of the assets of these schemes
was £1 869m and represented 97% of the benefits that had sccrued to members after allowing for exp d ficture m g

On 6 Apnl 2006, the Brinsh Sugar Pension Scheme was merged into the Associated Briush Foods Pension Scheme  Their respective funding positions were
recaleulated at that pownt and the group agreed 1o make two payments of £14 Sm, the first i October 2006 and the second m October 2007, 1o eluminate the deficit
at & Apnl 2006 1n the Bnuish Sugar section of the newly-metged scheme

The group also operates defined benefit pension schemes in Australia and New Zealand, the Ututed States the Republic of ireland,

Swatzerland, Norway, Germany, France and the Philippines  With the acquesition of llovo Sugar Ltd on 4 September 2006 the group also now operates
defined benefit schemes in South Africa and Zambia, both of which are closed to new members  The charge for the year s based on recommendations
by qualtfied actuanies For definded contribution schemes, the penston costs are the contributions payable

Asspmphions
The financial assumpticns used to vatue the UK pension schemes under IAS 19 together with the expected long term rates of raturn on assets are

2006 2005 2004

Yo e %

Dhscount rate 510 500 560
Inflation 300 280 280
Rate of increase in salanes 450 4 50 480
Rate of for p n p 280 250 280
Rate of for p in deft {where provided) 300 280 280

The mortality assumphions used to vatue the UK peasion schemes are denved from the PA92 gencrational mortahty tables with medium cohort improvements,
as published by the Institute of Actuanes The mortality rates undertying these tables have been adjusted to take account of the scheme's actual expenence

Exartptes of the resuluing hife expectancies are as follows,

Life expectancy from age 65 (in years) Male Female
Member aged 65 tn 2006 193 21
Member aged 63 wn 2026 203 230

The other demographic 2ssumptions have been set having regard 1o the latest trends in scheme expenence znd other relevant data.
The assumptions aze reviewed and updated as necessary as part of the penodic actuanal valuation of the pension schemes

For some of the overseas schemes regionally appropriate assumptons have been used where recommended by local actuanes

Balance Sheet
The expected rates of return and market values of the assets of the pnincipal schemes were as foliows

2006 2006 2005 2005 2004 2004
UK schemes Yo £m ) £m Yo £m
Expected long-term rates of return
Equities 730 806 650 774 700 666
Govemnment bonds 430 481 430 693 480 552
Non-government bonds 510 738 500 449 560 443
Property 580 3 580 68 630 67
Cther 4 80 90 450 57 480 40
Total market value of assets 2191 2041 1308
Present value of scheme [abilities {2,015) {1 941} {1,728)
Aggregate net surplus of the plans 156 100 80
Irecoverable surplus (a) - -
Net pension asset 156 100 20
1006 2006 2005 2005 2004 2004
Overseas schemes % £m Yo £m e £m
Expected long-term rates of return
Equities 865 122 695 ki 690 58
Government bonds 570 27 485 17 410 40
Nen-government bonds 400 25 700 24 580 -
Property 600 5 600 5 640 4
Other 385 23 615 16 360 5
Total market value of assets 202 141 107
Present value of scheme habilities {150) {159) {102)
Aggregate net surplus/{deficat) of the plans. 12 {13) 5
Irrecoverable surplus {a) {36) - -
Net pension asset/(ltabality) 24) (18) 5
Unfunded habitlity mcluded m the present valkue of
scheme ltabilittes above {19) {8) 4)

{a) The surplus in the plans 13 only recoverable to the extent that the Group can benefit from exther refunds formally agreed or future eontribution reductions

The expected rate of return on plan zssets was determined, based on acruanal advice, by a process that takes the long 1erm rate of return on
government bonds available at the balance sheet date and applies to these rates suttable nsk premia that take account of hustonc market
returns and curtent market long term expectations for each asset class



Notes forming part of the financial statements conunued

13 Ewmployee entitlements continued
Income statement
The charge to the income statement compnses

2006 2005
£m £m
Charged to operating profit
Defined benefit plans
Current service cost {46) (40
Past service cost - m
Gain on curtzalment 1 -
Defined contnbution plans 21) a9
Total operating cost (66) 60)
Reported 1n losses on sate of businesses
Past service cost - (1)
Gatn on curtalment - 4
Net credit n relation to the sale of & -
Rep d | tncome and fi i exp
Expected retum on assets 116 113
Interest on retirement benefit obhigations (103) (103)
Total other finance income / (¢ost) 13 10
Net impact on the ncome statement (before tax) (53) {50}
The actual retorn on scheme assets was £192m {2005 £268m)
Cash flow
Group cash fiow 1n respect of pensions compnises contributions paid to funded plans and benefits paid by the Company i respect of
unfunded plans [n 2006, the benefits paid 1n respect of unfunded plans was ml1 (2005 1) Company contnbutions to
fanded defined benefit plans are subject to periodic review  In 2006, contributions to funded defined benefit plans amounted to £48m.
Contnbutions to defined contnbuhon plans amounted to £21m (2005 - £19m}
Total contnbutions to fanded plans and benefit payments by the Group w1 respect of unfunded plans are currently expected to be
about £67m i 2007 (2006 £48m)
Statement of recogmsed income and expense
Amounts recogmsed tn the staternent of recogmsed income and expense
2006 2005
£m £
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 5 155
Expenence gans and loses ansing on the scheme Labihues 4 77
Changes i assumptions underlying the present vatue of the scheme hiabilines 30 (238)
49 (6)
Change mn unrecogrused surplus (6) -
Net actuanal gam/(loss) recognised 1n statement of recogrused ncome and expense (before tax) 43 (6)
Cumnulative actuarial gans from |9 September 2004 reported m the statement of recognised income and expense are £36m (2005 £(5)m)
Reconabation of change in assets smd habihties 2006 2005 2006 2005
Assets Assets Liabilities Llabilities
£m £m £m £m
Asset/(lhatihty) at beginning of year 2,182 1,915 {2 100) (1,330
Current service cost - - (46) (40
Employee contnbutions 11 10 (') (10)
Acquisiions/Disposals 50 8 {37 24)
Transfer from parent company - (2) -
Employer Contnbutions 48 50 -
Benefit payments (94) (71} 94 7
Past service cost - - - &3}
Gain on curtallments - - 1 4
Other finzncial mcome 116 113 -
Other financial cost - - (103) (103)
Actuanal gan/(loss) 75 155 (26) (161)
Currency retranslahon (5) 2 5 (2)
Asset/(liability) at end of year 2,393 2182 (2,225) (2,100)
Hustory of expensnce gams and losses 2006 2005 2004 2003
:fference between the expected and actual return on scheme assets
amount (Em) 75 155 (5) 45
percentage of scheme assets 31% 71% 03% 24%
Experience gains and losses on scheme habihies
- amount (£m) 4 77 2 (3}
- percentage of scheme Labilimes 02% 3% 12% 01%
Total amount included in the statement of recegnised income and expense
- amount (Em} 49 (6) 43 95
percentage of scheme habihities 22% 03% 23% 5 3%
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Notes forming part of the financial statements continued

14 Deferred tax assets and habilihes

fm
At 18 September 2004 (126)
Amount charged to the income statement [&)]
Amount charged to the statemnent of recogmsed tneome and expense n
Acquistlions (20}
At |7 September 2003 (156
On implementation of IAS 32 and IAS 39 on 18 September 2005 2)
At 17 September 2005 (restated) {158)
Amount charged to the income statement 29
Amount credited 1o the statement of recogused income and expense (8)
Acquisitions (123)
A1 16 September 2006 (318)
The analysis of the deferred tax posinon 15 as follows
2006 2005
£fm fm
Property, plant and equipment {183} (129)
Intangible assets 99} (24}
Employee benefits 7 (28}
Foreign exchange commodaty financial assets and hatilities 2 -
Other temporary differences (25) [L)]
Tax value of carry-forward losses recogmised 34 33
{318} (156}
Analysed as
- Deferred tax assets a0 76
- Deferred tax Labilities (398) €232}
(318) (156}

The recoverability of deferred tax assets 15 supported by the expected level of future profits in the countries concerned There are ather deferred tax
assets totalling £2m (2005 £6m} that have not been recognised on the basis that their future economic beneflt (s uncerta

In addition, there are temporary differences of £834m (2005 £733m) relating to wvestments in subsidianes and joint ventures  No deferred tax has been provided
1n respect of these differences since the timing of the reversals can be controlled and 1t 15 probabale that the temporary differences will not reverse
1 the future
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15 Receivables

2006 2005
£m £m
Non-current ather receivables
Long-term promussory note receivable ? -
Net loans recervable from parent company 475 67
Other recewvables 3 -
480 67
Current - trade and other receivables
Trade recervables 365 484
Amounts awed by joint ventures and associates 27 29
Prepayments and accrued mcome 19% 56
Fair value denvatives 17 -
Other recevables 9% 90
904 659
Impaurment of trade recervables dunng the penod (1} 3
The directors consider that the carrying amount of receivables approximates thesr far value
16. Assets and Habilities classified as held for sale
On 4 October 2006, with effect from 29 September 2006 the group sold its Scandinavian distrab by Haugen-Gruppen {Haugen’), to Ieelandic

distribution business [nnnes Haugen, which 1s part of the Grocery segment compnsed three businesses in Sweden, Denmark and Norway The decision to sell was
taken because the businesses were not core to group activities, and scate and focus benefits avalable to another dismbunon business meant Haugen was more
valuable to the buyer than to the group As a1 16 September 2006 the disposat group compnsed assets of £38m less Labilities of £11m

Also included 1n the table below, in property, plant & equipment are vanous properties classified as held for sale of £15m (2005 E9m), withen the Grocery, Agnculture
and Ingredients segments, that the group expects to dispose of in the next 12 months

2006 2005
fm £m
Assets classified as held for sale
Property, plant & equipment 12 [}
Inventoties 11
Trade and other recenvables 13 -
Cash and cash equivalents 7 -
53 9

Liabilities held for sale

Trade and other payables 9

Income tax 1 -

Employee benefits Liability 1 -
11 -
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[nventories
£m fm
Raw matenals and consumables 217 191
Work 1n progress 9 10
Finashed goods 2nd goods for resale 455 355
681 556
Wnrite down of ventones 17 26
Other investments 2006 2005
£m £m
Current
Investmments at fair value through the profit and loss 53 269
Avallable for sale investments 53 269
Investments at far value through she profit and loss are debt secunties, equity securities and ame deposits that present the group with an opportunty
10 generate returns through wnterest meome and trading gans
Cash and tash equivalents
2006 2005
£m £m
Cash at bank and 1n hand 253 294
Cash equivalents 30 483
Cash and cash equn alents 1n the balance sheet 183 777
Cash and cash equivalents mcluded 1n assets held for sale 7 -
Bank overdrails {included m note 20} {158) (35)
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 132 742
[nterest bearing loans and overdrafts
Thus note provides information aboun the contractual terms of the group's tnterest-bearng loans and borrowings For more information about the group's
exposure 1o interest rate and currency nisk, see note 26
2006 2005
Current Labilitres £m £m
Secuted bank loans 15 28
Unsecured bank loans and overdrafis 145 55
180 83
Non-carrent liabilities
10 3/4% secured redeemable debenture stock 2013 150 150
Secured bank loans 9 -
Unsecured bank loans H 12
Finance lease labilities 12 12
176 174
356 257

The secured loans are secured by floating charges over the assets of subsidiary undertakings
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20 Interest- bearing loans and overdrafts continued

Terms and repayment schedule
Bank loans Redeemable Finance lease
and overdrafts debenture stock Labilities
2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m im £m £m £m £m £m
Within one year or on demand 180 83 - - - - 180 83
Between one and two years 5 g - - - - 5 8
Between two and three years 5 4 - - - - 5 4
Between three and five years 4 - - - - 4 B
After five years - - 130 150 12 12 162 162
194 95 150 150 12 12 3856 257

Borrowing facillties
The group has varous borrowmng faciities avarlable to it
have been met, are as follows

2006
im

The undrawn commtted facilities available to the group m respect of which all conditions precedent

2005
im
11

Expinng withmn one ycar
Expinng between one and five years

11

Expimng after five years

Since the year end the group's unmediate parent company refinanced its exteral borrowings and has negotiated a multi-currency US$1 2bn syndicated loan
facility with a term of five years and with two one-year extension options It wall be used for general corporate purposes The new facility has been provided

by the group s existing bank group
Finance lezse habalities

Finance lease habilines are payable as follows

Minimum Minimum
lease lease
payments  Interest Principal paymeats  [oterest  Prinerpal
2006 2006 2006 005 2005 2005
£im £m £m £m im £m
‘Within one year 1 ] 1 1 -
Between one and five years 3 3 - kS 3 -
After five years 43 3l 12 44 32 12
47 is 12 48 36 12
Under the terms of the lease agr ] gent rents are payabl
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21 Trade and other payables

2006 2005
£m £m
Trade payables 444 363
Accruals and deferred income 483 35
Fair value denvatives 15 -
Amounts owed 1o parent company 626 777
Other payables 17 23
1,605 1,521
The directors consider that the carrying arount of trade and other payables approxamates therr fair vatue
22 Provision for labitities and charges
Restructuring Other Total
£m fm £m
A1 17 September 2005 3] 29 20
Provisions made dunng the year 47 8 55
Provisions utihsed durning the year (62} (7 %)
Provisions reversed durtng the year 3] (8} (10}
Acguisitions 2 3 5
Effect of n foreign exchang, - (1) 1]
At 16 September 2006 46 24 T0
Cusrent 44 5 49
Non current 2 19 21
48 4 70
Restructunag

Restructunng provisions relate to the cash costs including redundancy, associated wath the group's announced reorgarusation plans, the majonty of
which wtll be utilised 1n 2006/7

Other
Other provisions masnly compnse potential warranty clamms ansing from the disposal of businesses The extent and timing of the utiiganon of these
provisions 1$ more iwicertain given the penod of the relevant wamanties
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23 Capital and reserves

Reconciliation of movement in capital and reserves

Altr le to equaty shareholders
Capital
Essued Other contribution Translatio Hedging Retamed Minority Total
capital  reserves reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total  interest equity
£m £m im £m £m £m fm fm £m
At 18 September 2004 (restated} 214 1 - - 3210 3,425 27 3,452
Actuanat losses on net pension assets - - - (6) (6} - {6)
Effect of movements wn foreign exchange - - - 32 - - 32 3 33
Tax effect on movements in foreign exchange - - - )] - - ¢4} - n
Profit for the year - - - . - 356 156 7 363
Dividends paid to shareholders - - - - (1500 {150} - {150}
Dividends paid to minorities - - - - 4} 4}
Acquisitions and rinonity buy outs - - - - - (2) (2)
At 17 September 2005 214 1 - 3 - 3410 3,656 29 3,685
Openwng 1AS 32/39 adjustment - - - - 7 - 7 - 7
At 17 September 2005 (restated) 214 1 - El 7 3410 3,663 19 3,692
Actuanal gains on net PENSION assets - - - - - 43 43 - 43
Deferred tax assoctated with net petision assets - - - - - (12) (12) - {12)
Effect of movements tn foreign exchange - - - [g2.]] - - (75) {1} (16)
Profit for the year - - - - - 317 n? ? 324
Capual contrtbution received - - 283 - - - 283 - 283
Dwidends paid to shareholders - - - - - (180) (180) - {180)
Dividends paid to mmonties - - - - - - - (6) (6)
Acqutstitons and muonty buy ouls - - - - - - - 195 195
Movement of cash flow hedgmg position - - - - (17 - (7 - an
Deferred tax assoclated with movement of
cash flow hedging positton . - . - 4 - 4 - 4
At 16 September 2006 214 1 283 (44) (6} 3,578 4,016 224 4,250
Share capltal
Ordinary
shares of
Sp Nomunal
each value
000 £m
Authorised
At 17 September 2005 and 16 September 2006 600,000 30
Isstted and fully pard
At 17 September 2005 and 16 September 2006 449,815 2

Translation reserve

The translation reserve compnses all foreign exchange differences antsing from the transiation of the financial statements of foreign operattons
a3 well as from the translation of Liabilities that hedge the group's net mvestment m foreign subsidtanes

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve compnises the cffective portion of the cumulative net change 1n the fair value of cash flow hedging mstruments related to hedged transachons

that have not yet occwrred.
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Notes forming part of the financial statements continued

24 Acqusitions and disposals
During the year, the group purchased lllovo Sugar Luntted (*llkovo™), completed a number of small acquisitions and disposed of its mterests n 2 number of small
busmnesses

Acquesions
The acquisitions had the followng effect on the group's assets and liabilities

2006 Illovo Other . Total
Pre- Pre- Pre-
acquisition Recognlsed acquisiion Recogused acquisition Recnlgmsed
careying values on carrving values on carrying values on
amounts acquistion amouis acquistion amownts acquistion
Net Assets Note £m £m £m £fm £m fm
Intangible assets 2 213 - 53 2 266
Property, plant & equipment 128 166 18 15 146 181
Investments 10 jomt ventures and associates - - 4 4 4 4
Inventones 103 106 i4 12 117 113
Biologtcal assets 98 98 - - 98 98
Trade and other receivables 80 80 18 17 o8 97
Cash and cash equivalents 19 19 T 7 26 26
Trade and other payables (94) (94) (14) (14) (108) (10%)
Overdrafts (113) (113) - - (113) (1
Interest beanng loans and borrowings (19) am 3) 3) 22) (22
Intercompany debt - ) ) (2} (2
Provisions [C)] {4) 1)) (1) (5) (3
Taxation (40} (110) [1)] (13) (41) (12%
Employee benefits (7} )] - (7) N
Net identifiable assets and habilities 153 335 40 75 193 410
Goodwill on acquisitions 9 148 43 191
Goodwill on acquisttion of yoint ventures 8 8
Mmarity interests acquiredidisposed of (19%) (2) {197
Total consideration 288 124 452
Sabshied by )
Cash consideration 288 121 409
Deferred consideration - 1 1
Inferest 1n joint venture . 2 2
Net cash -
Cash consideration 288 121 409
Cash acquired/overdraft disposed 94 N 87
382 114 496
There were no material differences between pre acquisition carrying and amounts recognised on acquisition, which meclude fawr value adpsiments

{0 the assets and habalities acquired, with the exception of £211m of intangibles which were recognised on acquisition of Illovo, a £38m adjustment to property plant and
equpment and a £70m adyustment to deferred tax

Acquisition of Illovo Sugar Lid ("Hlovo')

The acquisition of Illove, the Afiican cane sugar producer was completed on 4 September 2006 The group acquired 51% of the shares i the company for £286m
sanisfied mn cash £2m of acquisition costs were also mcurred i relation to this acquistion  The subsidary contnibuted net profit of ml to the consohdated net profit for the
year, since acquisition date  The contribution to group revenue and net profit, had the acqustion occurred at the beginming of the year, has not been disclosed as it

would be impracticable to determune these amounts due 10 the following reasons

{1) Tllovo has a different year end to the group,

(1) Whilst information 15 publicly available, 1t 1s not sufficient to determumne accurately the farr value adjustments that would have been made to the balance sheet one year
ago, and

(1u) The mpact on world sugar markets as a result of the reform of the sugar regume may make disclosimg Ilovo's resnlts for the last 12 months ousleadmg 1n this context

A summary of Iflovo's reported results for thewr most recent full year are shown below

2006
Income for the year ended 31 March 2006 Rm
Revenue 54688
Cost of sales (3,448 8)
Gross profit 20200
Dustribution expenses (41972
Admimstratives expenses (6210}
Other operating eapenses (228 3)
Operaung profit 7515
Dividend mecome []
Net mterest expense (101 9)
Profit before taxation and matenal 1tems 6506
Matenal 11gms a5
Profit before taxation 654 1
Taxation (197 3)
Profit for the penod 456 8
Attributable to
Shareholders of 1lovo Sugar Lid 3517
Minonty Interest 59§
4568
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Notes forming part of the financial statements continued

24 Acquisitions and disposals continued

2005 Littlewoods Yeast Other — Toal
Pre- Pre- Pre- Pre-
acqusition Recognised acquisition Recoguised acquisition R“?Iﬁﬂd scquisition Re“;tnhed
carrymg values en carnying values on carrylng va :jﬂ on carrying val :: oo
amunts 2cquistion amaunts acquistion amounts acquistion amounts acquistion
Net Assets Note £m im £m £m £m £m £m £m
Intangible assets - - - 244 . 16 - 280
Property, plant & equiproent 342 419 147 147 10 10 499 576
tnv 10 jount v and assoclates - - 8 ] 18 18 26 26
[nventones 19 19 29 37 s 5 53 61
Trade and other receivables 19 19 62 62 8 3 89 89
Cash and cash equivalents [ ] 33 1 4 4 43 43
Trade and other payables {44) (44) (55) (55) (6) (6) (10%) (105)
Interest beanng loans and borrowmgs (12) (3) [&))] (1) {mn (4) (16}
Provisions (3) (3) - - - - 3 (3
Taxation 3 31 (@] 10 1 (8) )] 29
Employee benefits - - (3 (13) - - (13) a3
Net identifiable assets and luabilities 33 470 56 909
Goodwill on acquisitions 9 34 231 26 291
Goodwill on acquisition of jownt ventures - . [ 6
Munonty interests acquured - {7 ¢ 2
Total constderation 407 694 107 1,208
Satisfied by
Cash consideration 413 690 88 1L,191
Deferred consideration (6) 13 7
Shares 1n subsidiary undertaking - 4 - 4
Interest un Jomnt venture - - [ [
Net cash
Cash consideration 413 690 88 1,191
Cash acquired/overdraft disposed {6) 33) 4 (43)
407 657 34 1,148
Disposals
The disposals had the following ¢ffect on the group's assets and habilities
Carrying Carrying
values values
2006 2005
im £m
Net assets
Property, plant & equipment 2 15
Investments i jount ventures and associates - 1
Inventones - 28
Trads and othet recesvables - 42
Overdrafis - 0]
Trade and other payables - (74)
Interest-beanng loans and borrowngs (2) -
Intercompany detrt 4) -
Net idenufiable asscts and iabihties {4} 7
Mrnorty tterests disposed of 2 -
Recycle of foreign exchange differences 2 .
Loss on disposal (4 {1}
Totat consideration {4) 6
Satisfied by
Cash consideration - 2
Interest 1n jomt venture (4) 4
Net cash
Cash ¢onsideration . 2
Cash recerved 1o respect of prior year disposals - 1
Cash acquired/overdraft disposed - 5
- 8
Costs ted with acy and disposals are mehuded withm cash conswderation
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Notes forming part of the financial statements contnued

25 Analysis of net funds/(debt)

At At
17 September Acquisitions/ Exchange 16 September
2005 Cashflow disposals  adjustments 2006
£m £m £m £m £m
Cash at bank and 1n hand, cash equivalents and overdrafts 742 (605) - {5) 132
Short term borrowings {48) 33 {6) 1] (22)
Investments 269 216) - - 53
Loans over one year {174) - (14} 12 (176)
789 (788) (20} [ (13)

26 Financial instruments

The principal financial risks to which the group ts exposed are foreygn currency exchange rate risk, interest rate sk, commodity price tisk and credst risk

In accordance with the option allowed by IFRS 1, the group has adopted 1AS 39 and [AS 32 prospectively from 18 September 2005, and consequently nformation for the
year ended 16 September 2006 15 provided on thus basts For the year ending 17 September 2005, mformation has been provided on the previously pubhshed basis
under UK GAAP

Risk gement pol and hed actrvitles

Foretgn currency risk

Translation exposures

The group does not hedge the ranslation effect of exchange rate movements on the icome statement

Transacticn ¢xpasures
The mamn transaction exposures i the group are
sugar prices m Briush Sugar UK and Poland te mevements 10 the pound stertmg/euro exchange rate and Polish zloty/euro exchange rates respectively,
_ sugar prices m [Wovo sugar ple 1o movements m the South Afncan rand/US dollar exchange rate
« sourcing for Primark (which 1s denominated n a number of currencies, predominantly pounds sterlmg, euros and US dollars)
Elsewhere, many t ourchase raw matenals m foreign currencies largely US dollar denommnated

¥

The group's pohicy 15 to hedge trade receivables and rade payables denominated i foreign currencies The group also hedges its forecast foreign currency exposure 1
respéct of firture sales and purchases up to 12 months Significant foregn currency transactions are covered by forward purchases and sales of foreign currency
The mayority of the forward exchange contracts undertaken by the group have marurities of less than one year

a) Forecast transactions

The growp classifies its forward exchange contracts hedgmg forecast transactions as cash flow hedges and states them at fair vatue The net fair value of forward
exchange contracts used as hedges of forecast transactons at 16 September 2006 was a loss of £3m, compnsing assets of £2m and habilties of £5m that were
recogmised wn recewvables and trade and other payables respectively

&) Recogrised assets and babilines

Changes m the farr value of forward exchange contracts that economically hedge monetary assets and hiabihities in foreign currencies and for which no hedge accounting
15 apphed are recogmsed in the meome: statement  Both the changes m farr value of the forward contracts and the for¢ign exchange gans and losses relating to the
monctary items are recogmised as part of operating costs

The net fair value of forward exchange contracts used as economic hedges of monetary assets and liabilties 1n foregn currencies at 16 September 2006 was a loss of £2m
comprising assets of £8m and Labilies of £10m that were recogmsed in receivables and trade and other payables respectively

Interest rate risk
The group’s imterest rate nisk is primanly m relation to its fixed rate borrowngs and floating rate borrowmgs  The group's poiicy 1s camrently to mamtam floating rate debt for
the majonty of its bank finance

Commaoduty price risk

The group purchases commodities ncluding wheat, otls, cocoa andtea m the ordinary course of 1ts business  There are policies m place which are designed to hedge
the exposure of the group to changes m the market price of such commodities and these policies melude the use of futures and options contracts  The use of such
contracts are tightly controlled withun set luruts

The net farr vahe of fatures and options contracts used as hedges of forecasted wansactions at 16 September 2006 was a loss of £6m comprising assets of £4m and
Tiabslities of £9m that werg recogmised m recervables and trade and payables respectively

Credut risk

Cash & cash equivalents and other curvent mvestmenis

The group's cash & ¢ash equivalents and other current investments totalled £409m at 16 September 2006 (2005 - £1 198m) mcluding £75m placed with professional
nvestment managers who have full discretion to act withi closely monutored and agreed guidehnes

The 1nvestent objective is to preserve the underlying assets, whilst achieving a satisfactoty retun  The mvestment guidelmes are kept under constant reviesy with the
objective of monttonng and controlling nsk bevels The gmidehnes require that nvestments must carry 2 mmMUm gredit rating of AA-/AL for long and shoft term paper
respectively, and also set down condiions relating to soverengn sk, matunty, exchange rate exposure and type of mvestment mstrument Aggregaie lirmuts for each
category of mvestment and risk exposure are set for ¢ach manager

Other financial assets
Management has a credit policy n place and the exposure 1o credit nsk 15 monstored on an ongomg basts Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit

Given their hgh crednt ratings management do¢s not expect any counterparty to fa1l to meet its obhigations, other than those provided for/impawed at 16 September 2006,
as descnibed m note 15
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26 Financial nstruments continued

At 16 Seprember 2006 there were no sigmificant concentrations of credil nsk The maxumum exposure to credit risk s represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset, mcluding dervative financial mstruments, m the balance sheet

Laquadaty risk
The group has a combination of financial mvestmeats (refer to cash & cash equivalents and other current mvestments section above) and commusted bank facilities to
ensure that the group has avaifabble finds to meet ris long-term capital 2nd funding obligations and to meet any unforseen obligations and opportunities

Embedded Derivatives
The group'spolicy 1s to review contracts to wdentify embedded denvatives that are required to be separetly accounted for under IFRS As at 16 Septerber 2006
0o matenal embedded denvateves had been dentified.

Fair values
A comparison of the farr values of financial nstruments with therr carrying i the bal sheet1s p d below, analysed by the currencies m which the
financia! mstruments are demonnated
Carrying Fair
Amount value
2006 Sterling  USdoilar Euro Other 2006
Note fm £m £m im {m £m
Other current investments ig 53 48 4 - 1 53
Reccivables {a) 1,179 1,243 (520} 144 2 1,179
Cash and cash equivalents (b) 290 103 47 32 108 290
Forward exchange contracts
Assets 10 | 9 - - 1¢
- Liablities (15} - ) - [C)] (15)
Commodity futures
- Assets 4 4 - - 4
Liabilities 1) L] m - - {10}
Cross CUrTency Interest rate swap - asscts 3 - 3 - 3
Bank overdrafts 19 {158) (6) (22} @ {128) (158)
Secured bank loans 20 {24) - (12) - (12} 24)
Unsecured bank loans 20 a2 (6) {3} (&3] 12
10 3/4% redeemable debenture stock 20 (150) (150) - - (180)
Finance lease Labilitics 20 12) (12) - - - (12)
Trade and other payables «) (1,589) (1,118) (134) (62) (215} (1,58%)
(431) 104 {638) 109 (6} (461)
Net unrecogntsed gan/(loss) {30}
{a) Trade and other receivables per above 1,179
Less Haugen group receivables (excluding
prepayments) classified as held for sale 16 (42}
Trade and other receivables (excluding demvauve
assets and prepaymenis) 15 168
(b} Cash and cash equivalents per above 290
Less Haugen group cash classified as held for sale 16 [¢)]
Cash and cash equivalents 19 283
(c) Trade and other payables per above {1,589)
Less Haugen group payabies classified as held for sale 16 9
Trade and other payables (excluding denvative habihuies) 21 {1,580)
The following summanses the major methods and prions used in the fair values of financial instruments reflected 1n the above able
Qtiher current tnvesiments

Fair vatue 1s determuned by reference to a quoted market pnice 1 an active market at the reporting date

Trade and other recewvables / payables
For recewvables/payables with a remamnmg hife of less than one year, the notional amount is deemed to reflect the far vatue  All other receivables/payables are discounted
at the market rate of imterest at the reporting date 10 determune the fair value

Derivanives

Forward exchange contracts are either marked to markes using Tisted market prices or by discounting the contractua! forward pnce and deducting the current spol rate
Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash flows are based ot management's best estimates and the discount rate is a market rate

for a sonzlar instrument at the balance sheet date  Where other pncing models are used, nputs are based on market related data at the balance sheet date

Interest-beaning loans and borrgwings

Fair value 1s calculated based on d expected future principal and mterest ¢ash flows
Finance lease habiiities
The air value 1s estrmated a3 the present value of future cash flows, discounted at market mterest rates for b ous lease agr The d farr values

reflect changes w wnterest rates
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26 Financial instruments continued

Effective mterest rates and repricing analysis
In respect of tncome-eaming financial assets and tnterest-bearng financial labilities, the following table indicates therr effective mterest
rates at the batance sheet date and the periods of matunty or pervods m which they reprice, which ever 1s earhor The values shown 15 the caTyIng amount

Effective 1006
interest 6 months 612 12 2-5 Morg than
rate Total or less months years years S years
Note %o £m £m £m £m £m £m
Assets
Other current investments'’ 18 430 53 49 3 1 . -
Cash (@) 289 260 260 - - -
Cash cquivalents ™ 19 450 30 30 - - -
Liabilities
Bank overdrafts 20 661 (158) (158) - - -
Secured bank loans 20
- USD fioatmg rate joan 800 {2y - - n n -
- USD fixed rat¢ loan 700 (10} {1 {D ) (4}
- Other floatng rate loan 414 (6] D - - -
- Onther fixed rate loan 638 (5) (4 84}
Unsecured bank loans 20
- USD fixed rate loan 597 6y & - (3 -
- EUR fixed rate loan o0 (1] . - - (3)
Qther fixed rate loan 425 [&)] - [} - -
10 3/4% secured redeemable debemure stock 2013 20 1075 (150} - - - - (150)
Cross currency mterest rate swap 388 3 3 - - -
Fumance izase habfities* 20 498 {12} - - - {12)
(10) 169 2y () (8) (165)
{a) Cash at bank and n hand per above 260
Less Haugen group cash classified as held for sale 16 [44)
Cash at bank and n hand 9 253
) (wher current mvestments generally comprise funds mvested with funds (1e 1 debt securtties, equity sesunties and time deposits) that have

an onginal matunity of greater than three months and are at fixed rates

© (*ah at bank and 1 hand generally earns wnterest at rates based on the daily bank deposit rate

 Cash equivalents generally compnise
(1) deposits piaced on money markets for penods up to three months which eamn mterest at the respective short-term deposit rate, and
(n) funds mvested with funds managers that have a maturity of less than or equai to three months and are at fixed rates

) Bank overdrafts penerally bear interest at floatng rates

) These Liabilities bear umterest at a fixed rate

Denvative finapcial instruments
The table below shows changes in the cash flow hedging reserve (a component of equity} durmg the year ending 16 September 2006

2006
fm
Balance of cash flow hedging reserve at 18 September 2005 7
Effective portion of gawns or losses on hedging mstruments used m cash flow hedges (16)
Gans or losses op hedging instruments transferred to profit or loss m
Gains or losses transferred to adjust the mitial measurement of the hedged asset 4
Balance of cash flow hedging reserve a1 16 September 2006 (6)

The net loss on hedging ntruments transferred to the profit and loss 15 recogmsed n operating costs n the in¢ome staternent

All gamns and losses reported directly m equity as at year end are expecled 10 enter mio the determmanion of net profit or loss in the followmg year
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Notes forming part of the financial statements contmued

Operating Leases
Leases as a lessee
The future mumum lease payments under operating leases are as follows

2006 2005

due £m £m

Withuin one year 61 58
Between one and five years 180 138
After five years 508 466
849 662

The group acts 25 a lessee for both land and buildings and plaet and machtery

Sublease recerpts of £8m (2005 £2m) were recogmsed 1n the income statement in the period The total of future mummum subleass receipts expected to be receved are

£98m (2005 £1056m)

Refer to note 20 for detaits on Finance feases

Contingencies

Ling and other p dings agamst comp i the group are not considered matenal 1n the context of these financial statements

The group has not adopted the amendments to IAS 39 1 relation 10 financial guarantee contracts which apphes for perods commencing on or after 1 January 2006
Where group companies enter mto financial guarantee contacts to guarantes the indebiedness of other group companes, the group ders these to be
arrangements 2nd accounts for thern as such m accordance wath IFRS 4 In tus respect, the group treats the guarantee contract as a coningent Itabibity 1mhl such
me as 1t becomes probable that the relevant group company 1sswing the guarantee will be required to make a further payment under the guarantee

As at |5 September 2006, group companies have provided guarantees i the ordinary course of busmess amounting to £13%m (2005 £31m)

Retfated parties

The group has a controlling related party retationship with 11s parent company and ut's ultimate paren! company {see note 1)

The group also has a related party relationship with 1ts associates {see note 12}, aad s jount ventures {see note 12)

In the course of nermal operations, related party transactons entered into by the group have been contracted on an arms-length basis

Sub note 2006 2005
£000 £000

Charges to Wrttington Investments Limited 1n respect of services provided by the company

and its subsidiary undenakings 152 17
Sales to fellow subsidiary undertakings on normal trading terms 1 2,663 2802
Amounts due from fellow submidianies on normal trading terms 1 679 436
Sales to jomnt ventures and associates on normal trading terms 2 116,987 78,390
Purchases from jount ventures and associates on normal trading terms 2 20,613 16,329
Amounts due from joint veatures and associates 2 26979 28,628
Amounts due to joint ventures and associates 2 1,97% 115

1 The fellow subsidiary undertaking 1s Fortnum and Mason PLC

2 Details of the group's p pal joint and are set out 1n note 31

Subsequent event
On 12 October 2006 the group’s immediate pareni company refinanced 113 external borrowings See note 26 for further details

35



Notes forming part of the financial statements conunued

31 Group entities
Control of the group
The company 15 a whelly owned subsidiary of Associated British Foods plc The largest group m which the results of the gompany are consohidated 1s that headed by
Wattington Investments Lumited, the accounts of which are available at Companies House, Crown Way, Cardsff, CF14 JUZ 1113 the ulumate holding company,
13 incorporated in Great Britan and registered tn England The smaltest group m wiich the results of the Company are consohdated 15 that headed by Associated
Bntish Foods ple, which 1s incorporated 1n Great Britian and registered in England The consohidated fi 1| ts of A d Briush Foods plc are
available at Companies House Crown Way, Cardiff, CFid 3UZ

Significant snbsidiaries

A list of the group's sigmaficant subsidiary undertakings 15 given below The entire share capiizl of the companies listed 15 hetd withun the group except where
percentages are shown  These percentages give the group’s ultmate nterest and therefore allow for the position where subsidtary undertakings are owned by

parly owned mtermediate subsidiary undertakings

Manufactaring activities Country of incorporation
AB Brasi Industnia e comercio de Alimentos LTDA Branl

AB Enzymes (GmbH Germany
AB Enzymes Oy Finland
ABF Grain Products Lumted UK

AB Food & Beverages Australia Pty Lid Australia
AB Food & Beverages Philippines, Inc Plulippines
AB Food & Beverages (Thailand) Limuted Thailand
AB Maun Food, S A Spam

AB Maun India (Pnvate) Lumted India
Abitec Corporation us

Abitec Lirmted UK

ABNA Lunited UK

ABNA {Shangha) Feed Co Lud Chmna
ACH Food Companies Inc us
Alimentos CapulloSdc RL de TV Mexico
Anzchem Pty Ltd Australia
Briish Sugar (Overseas) Lunited UK

Brimsh Sugar ple UK

Calsa de Colombna S.A Colombia
Cergform Limited uK
Compama Argentina de Levanduras SAI1C Argentina
Cukrownia Glinojeck SA (98%) Poland
Deutsche Hefewerke GmbH Germany
Food Imvestments Lumited UK

Foods Intemnational § A France

G Costa and Company Lunsted UK

George Westan Foods Limited Australia
George Weston Foods (NZ) Lumuted New Zealand
Gemuain's (Ireland} Lumted Republic of Ireland
Germaun's Technology Group NA Ine us
Germains Techrology Group Polska Spzo o Poland
Guangx1 Bo Hua Food Co  Ltd (70%) China
Guangx1 Boqing Food Co , Ltd (60%) China
Harby Maun Yeast Co , Limuted Chuna
Haugen-Gruppen AS* Norway
Haugen-Gruppen Denmark AS*

Haugen-Gruppen Sweden AB* Sweden
fovo Sugar Limited (51%) South Africa
Movo Sugar (Malawi) Limited (39%) Malawn
Jacksons of Piccadilly Eumsted UK

Jordan Bros, (N 1) Lunited UK
Kilombero Sugar Company Limsted {28%) Tanzzma
Liaorung Ltaohe Aimin Feed Co  Ltd Chma
Liaoning Liaohe Yingpeng Feed Co, Led China
Maragra Acucar SARL (38%) Mozambique
Maun Fermentos, SA Portugal
Maun Lanka (Private} Lumted Sn Lanka
Maun Maya Sanan A S Turkey
Maun Products Limited UK
Nambame Tea Company Lumited UK

R Twining & Co Linmted us

R Twitng & Company Limted UK

Serrol Ingredients Pty Limited Australta
Shanghai AB Foed & Beverages Lumited China

SP1 Pharma France

SPI Pharma Inc uUs

SPI Polyols Ine us
SugarPol (Forun) Sp z.0 o (72%) Poland

The Biflingzon Food Group Limuted UK

The Ryvita Company Lumted UK

Tone Brothers, Inc us
Twimngs North Amenica Inc us
Ubombo Sugar Limited (31%) Swanland
Wander AG Switzerland
Yeast Products Company Limited (60%) Republic of Ireland
Zambia Sugar ple (46%) Zambia

Retailing activities

Country of incorporation

Primark Republic of Ireland
Primark Stores Limited UK

Investment and otber activities Counniry of m¢orporation
ABF European Holdings & Co SNC Luxembourg

Talisman (Guernsey) Lumited

Guemnsey, Channet Islands

Group tnterest 1 100% except where indicated The group's interests in subsidiary undertakings are all equiry e estments

Bntish Sugar (Overseas) Limited operates subsidiary undertakings and jont ventures i Europe and Asia.
Other than this company, each subsidary undertaking op maznly 10 1ts country of meorporation

*Haugen companies were sold on 4 October 2006
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31 Group entitics continued

Interest in joint ventures and associates
A list of the group’s mierest tn yo1nt ventures and associates 15 given below

Isswed ordinary share capita)
Country of Groap
mcorporation Tota) Yo
Principal joint ventures and associates
Austratastan Lupm Processing Pty Lid Australia AS$560,000 50
C Czamikow Sugar Limited UK £1,000,000 43
Chiltern Bakenes Lunited UK £100 44
Fronter Agnculture Limted UK £36,001,000 50
Getee Guanabara Chnmica Industnal S8A Branl BRR 14,254,370 50
Harper-Love Adhesives Corporation us [153912,200 50
Levaduras Collico S A Chile CLP28,000 50
Murray Bridge Bacon Pty Limuted Australia A$11,040,210 20
New Food Coatngs Pty Lumited Australia AS$3150,000 50
Qungdac Xnghua Cereal On) & Foodstuff Co  Lid China CNY?22,400,000 33
Roal Oy Finfand EUR3,196,000 50

There 13 po significant loan capital in any of the jont ventures or associales Each jount venture and associate carmes out manufactunng and food

procassing activines and operates mamly i 1its country of incorparation

The compantes listed herein ar¢ those subsidiary undertakings, jownt ventures and assoctates whose results or financial position, i the opuuon of the
drectors, prnaipally affected the figures shown in these annual accounts as a hst of all group compames would result m information of excessive
length being grven A full list of the subsidiary undertakings shall be annexed to the next annual return of Assoctated Bnush Foods plc delivered to

the Regstrar of Companies
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Notes forming part of the financial statements conunued

32, Accounting esthmates and judgements

Key sources of estimation nncertainty

In applying the accoumng policies detailed on pages 910 12, management has made appropnate ¢SUMatEs in mary aredy and the actual outcome may
differ from those calculated  The key sources of estimation uncertanty at the balance sheet date that have a sigmfican risk of causing matenal
adjustment 1o the carmying value of assets and habilities within the niext financial year are

Forecasts and discount rates
The carrying value of a pumber of 1ems on the balance shest are dependent on estunates of funzre cash Nows ansing from the group's operations
which, 1n some circumstances, are discounted to armve at a net present value

“ The cancying value of goodwill must be assessed for impatmment at Least annualty and also when there 13 an wndication that 1t may be impared
This ivolves companng the book value of goodwill wath its recoverable amount beng the higher of value n use and far value less
costs to sell  Vahse 1n use 15 determuned with reference 10 projected futwre cash flows discounted at an approprute rate  No unpairmest resulied
from the assessment conducted i 2006, however, both the projected future cash flows and the discount rate applied mvolve a sigmficant degree of
&SHUmation uncenainty

The realisation of deferred fax assets recogmsed 15 dependent on the generauon of sufficient future taxable profits m the jurisdictions in which the
defarted 1ax assets anse  The group recogruses deferred tax assets when 11 15 more likely than not that they will be recovered which 18 based on an
assessment of the hikelihood of there beng sufficient taxable profits the furure

Post-retirement beaefits

The group's defined benefit penmon schemes and similar arangernents are d annually m d with IAS 19 The sccountng vahealion,
which has been assessed on assumpuons determined with independent actuarial advice, resulted tn an asset of £169m and a Lability of £37m beung
recogmsed as at 16 September 2006 The size of the asset 1s sensitive [0 the market value of the assets held by the schemes and to the actuanal
assumptions, which include price mflabon, pension and salary mereases, the discount rate used int assessing actuanal habilities, mortality and other
demographic assumptions and the leve] of conmbunons  Further detai!s are included 1n note 13

Provisions

As described 1 the accountng policies on pages 9 1o i, provisions are measured at the directors’ best estumate of the expendimure required 1o settle
the oblygation at the balance sheet date  These esmates are made taking 1o aceount a range of possible outcomes

Property, plant and equipment residual vahees and useful lives

These assels ere wrtten down to their estimated residual values over their antcipated usefud hves using the straight line basis. Managemen? reviews
residuat values annually considenng market conditions and projected disposal values In assessing useful lives, mainienance programmes and
technological tnnovations ar¢ considered  The carrying vadue of property plant and equipment (5 disclosed wn note 10

Blologleal assets

Cane roots valuation - the escalated average cost of planting cane roots 15 adjusted for the remaining d hife This req an by
management of the average number of ratoons expected from the crop  The carrying valie of cane roots is diselosed in note 11

Growng cane valuanon growing canc is valued at the esimtated sucrose content valued at the estimated sucrose pnce for the following season, less
the estumated costs for harvesting and transpart The estumated sucrose content requires management 10 assess the expected cane and sucrose yields
for the following season considering weather conditions and harvesting programmes Lo assessing the estimated sucrose prioe, management 15
required to assess 1nto which markets the forthcoming erap wall be sold and assess domestic and export pnces as well as the refated foreagn currency
exchange rates The carrying value of growing cane 8 disclosed in note 1
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Notes forming part of the financial statements continued

33 Explanation of transition to IFRS

As stated 1n the accounting policies on pages 9 16 12, these gre the group's first consobidated financial statements prepared m accordance with [FRS

The sccounting policies have been applied m prepanng the financial statements for the year ended 16 September 2006, the parative wft p d
(n these financial statements for the year ending 17 September 2005 and m the preparauon of an opening IFRS balance sheet at 18 September 2004 (the group's
date of transition to [FRS)

In preparng s openutg [FRS balance sheet, the group has adsusted smounts reported preveously n financial siatements prepared i accordance with its old basis
of accounting (UK GAAP)  An explanztion of how the trensition from UK GAAP to [FRS has affected the group's financial posion, financial performance and cash
flows 15 set out below

The major changes for the group resulting from the troduction of [FRS relate to

The accounting for business combinations where mtangible assets which did not quabfy for separate recognition under UK GAAP are now recoghised
separatcly from goodwill

- The cessation of amortisation of goodwill

- The accounting for deferred tax on the basts of differences between the book value and tax base of assets and lsabilities (temporary differences) This results
1n defirred tax bemg recognised 1 crcumstances that did not give nse to deferred tax under UK GAAP  For example, deferred tax 1s now recognised on non
quabifymg intangible assets even though no tax Liability or asset 1s expected to crystallise i the foresecable firrure

« The aceounting for denvative financial mstruments from 18 September 2005 These are now reflected 1n the balance sheet at farr value with subsequent
changes m fair value bemng accounted for immedsately i the tncome statement unless certam condibions are satisfied.

. The calculation of profits and losses on the sale of subsidiaries which now no longer take account of goodwll previcusly whitien off 10 reserves

Income Statement

The adoption of IFRS has little mmpact on the group's adjusted measures of reported performance which exclude amortisation of intangible assets, profits less
iosses on the sale of property, plant & equipment and businesses and provisions for the losses on termupanion of operations  The adyustments that do arise at this
ievel retate principally to the following

- The manner w which fair vahies are atiributed to the separable net assets acquued ma b comb n Under [FRS 3, Buginess Combinations, for
fintshed goods acquired a margn for selling effort has been deducted to determine the faw value  The fair valued mventones were 501d during the year
{adjustment (a)) and
The requirement under IFRS to deduct the related tax from the group’s share of profits of its associates and jomt ventures which are wcluded 1 operating
profit

The group’s unadjusted measures of performance are also affected by the fact that under IFRS

+ Goodwill 15 no longer amornised but miangible assets which are now recogised m circumstances that would not have been the case under UK GAAP, are
amortised {adjustment (b}}

- Goodwill previcusty wnitten off to reserves 1s not taken mto account in czleulatng the profit or Joss ansmg on the sale of busmesses (adjustment (¢)), and

. Deferred tax 1s normally recogmsed on all differences between the book values of assets and labihuies and their tax bases (temporary differences) Refer
below for details (adjustment (d)}

Balange Sheet
The group s net assets at 17 Seplember 2005 are umpacted by the followmng

Goodwill s no longer amortised but tested for Ity (ady [L))]

- Intangible assets are now separately recogmised from goodwill and are amortised over thetr estimated useful hives (adjustment (b)),

- When calculating the profit or loss anising on the sale of busmesses goodwill previously written off 1o reserves 1s no longer taken into account {adjustment (€))

- With limited exceptions, deferred tax 1s recogmsed on all differences between the book values of assets and Labilities and their tax bases (temporary
differences) rather than just certamn timing differences under UK GAAP  As a result, whers gible assets and tangible fixed assets ane acquired as part of
a business combmation deferred tax must be gnised on any d porary diffcrences  The 15 affected post-acq o1 by
the remporary differences recogmised on acquisttion subsequently change as a result of depreciation and amortisation  For goodwll deferred tax 15 no longer
recorded at the date of acquisiion, and subsequent tax amortisation and impaurment charges will result 1n deferred tax on goodwill (2djustment (d})

.« Goodwill and intangible assets ansing on acquisitions subsequent 16 3 September 2004 where IFRS 3 has been applied, are denomnated m local cumren¢ies
and retranslated al each balance sheet date  Under UK GAAP most goodwill and intangrbie assets weve treated as sterlng assets (adjustment (f)},

A credut adyustment has been made to employee entitlements assets and babikitics to take account of different vahuation methodelogies for pension scheme
assets under IAS 19 Due to the group having previously adopted FRS 17, Returement Benefits, under UK GAAP, there are no significant differences arnsing
upon transition to IAS 19, Employee benefits (adjustment (g)),

- Under UK GAAP, all of the group s property leases were accounted for as operaling leases TAS 17 requures the element of a property lease that relares to
land 1o be considered scparately from the element that relates to buildings  The land clement will generally continue to be acoounted for as an operating lease
but, m certam cases, the buildings element will now be accounted for as a finance kease  Adustment bas therefore been made to mehide the fair value of
these finance Icased buildings within fixed assets, with an oblrgation of equal amount bewng provided as a lease ¢reditor  As these finance leases were
acqurred 1n September 2005, there 15 no umpact on the group’s net assets  The finance lease obligations have, however, reduced the group s net cash funds
by £12m at 17 September 2005 (refer to Note 20} (adjustment (h)),

An adjustment for engimeering mventories has been recorded a3 they do not meet the definition of mventones under LAS 2 (adjustment (1)

The group has elected to treat the UK GAAP value of all previously revatued properties as deerned cost and the revahiation reserve has been transferred to
retaned earmngs (adjustment {))), and

- As noted previously, the group has adopted [AS 39 from 18 Septesnber 2005 The group enters mto denvative financial instruments to hedge 1ts exposure to

fluctuations m exchange rates and commodity prices  Under LAS 39, such dervative financial mstruments arc recorded at thear fair value, The tmpact of the
adoption of IAS 39 1s 1o mcrease the group s net assets at 18 September 2005 by £7m,
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Company balance sheet
at 16 September 2006

2006 2005
Note £m £m
Fixed assets
Inve 1n subsidiary undertalangs 1 2,535 2554
2,535 2,554
Current assets
Debtors
- due within one year 2 548 6
due after one year 2 6 6
Investments 3 283 -
437 12
Creditors amounts falling due within one year
Other creditors 4 (283) (430)
(283) (a30)
Net current assets 554 (418)
Total nssets less current kabihities
Creditors amounts falling due after one year
A ts owed to subsidiary undertaking: 4 (287) {5}
Ner assets 2802 2,131
Capltal and reserves
Called up share capital 5 22 2
Share premium account [3 192 192
Capital contnbution reserve 6 283 -
Profiy and logs reserve 6 2,308 1,917
Equtty sharebolders’ funds 2,802 2,131

The financial statements on pages 44 to 46 were approved by the board of durzctors on 12 Apnl 2007 and were signed on its behalf by
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Reconctliation of movements 1n equity shareholders’ funds

for the year endexd: 16 Scptember 2006

2006 2005
£m £m
Profit for the financial year ] 375
Dundends (180) {150)
Capital contribution received 283 -
Net {reduction)addition to shareholders® funds 671 225
Opening equity sharcholders’ fimds 2,131 1,906
Closing equity shareholders' funds 2,80 2131
Accounting policies
for the vear ended 16 September 2006
Basls of preparation
The fi 1 are p 8w sterling, rounded to the nearest milhon They are prepared tnder the hustoncat cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of certam assets and 1 accordance with applicable United Kingdem accounting siandards (UK GAAP) and Compames Act 1985
As permutted by the Companies Act 1985, a separate profit and loss account for the Company has not been included m these fi Asp dbyFRS |
1o cash flow siatement for the Company has been included on the grounds that the group inchudes the Company un 1ts own published consolidated fi s
As permitted by FRS 8 no refated party disclosures for the Company have been included
lovestments to subsidiary undertalangs
Ir in subsidiary undertakings are reported at cost less any pravision for impatrment €xcept for those mvestments hedged 1n accordance with paragraph 28 of
SSAP20 These mvestments are denominated in foreign currency at inception of the hedge and then revalued at each reporung date
Notes to the Company financial statements
for the year ended 16 September 2006
1 Investmenis in subsidiary undertakings
£m
At 17 September 2005 2,554
Effect of movement n foreign exchange (19)
At 16 September 2006 2,535
There were 10 provisions for imparment in euther year
2 Debtars 2006 2005
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by parent company 548
Other debtors - 6
543 6
Amouxts falling due after one year
Amounts owed by subsidary undertakings [ 6
[ [
The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other debtors approximates ther fair value
3 Current asset investments 2006 2005
£m fm
Cost
Unhsted u 283 -
283 -
Current asset in estments compnse a holding of USD preference shares in a subsidiary undertaking
Market & redemphon value
Uniisted investments 283 -
283
4 Other creditors 2006 2005
im £m
Amounts falling due within oae year
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 283
Amounts owed to parent company - 430
283 430
Amonnts falling due after one year
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 287 3
287 5

The duectors tonsmider that the carrying amount of credutors approxmmates thew far vafue
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Notes to the Company financial statements contnued
for the year ended 16 September 2006

£ Share capical

Ordinary
shares of Nomizal
Speach value
‘000 im
Authonsed
At 17 September 2005 and 16 September 2006 600,000 30
Issued and fully paid
At 17 Seprember 2003 and 16 September 2006 449 813 22
6 Reserves
Share Capltat
Jssued premsm contribgtion Profit and
capita) aceount reserve loss reserve Total
im £m £m £m £m
At 17 September 2008 22 192 - 1.917 2,131
Profit for the year ~ - - 568 568
Capital contnibution received - 283 - 283
Dividends ~ - - (180) (180}
At 16 September 2006 22 192 283 2 305 2,502
T Dividends
Details of dividends pasi and proposed are provided 1 fote § to the consoldated fi 1 s

8 Contingent labilities
The Company has not adopted the amendments 1o FRS 26 1n relabon to financial guarantee contracts which will apply for penods commencing on or after 1 January 2006
Where the Company enters mto financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebiedness of other comp withsn its group, the Company considers these to be

mnsurance arrangemenis and zccounts for them as such In thus respect, the Company treats the guarantee contract as a contngent liabuity unhl such time a3 1t becomes
probable that the Company wulf be¢ requured to make a payment undet the guarantee

The Company does not expect the amendments to have any unpact on the financial statements for the penod commencing 17 September 2006

The Company has provided guarantees un the ordinary course of business amountng to £46m (2005 - £Nil)

9 Holdmg company information

The ultimate parent underiaking ts Witington Investments Limited which 1s incorporaied 1n Great Britan and regisiered 10 England The Company 15 a wholly owned
subsidiary of Associated Bansh Foods ple The largest group m which the results of the Company are consolidated 1s that headed by Witnmgton Investments Lumited The
smallest group w which they are consolidated 15 that headed by Assoctated Briush Foods ple which 15 mcomorated in Great Brzain and registered i England The
consohdated financial statements of Assoctated Brtish Foods plc are available 2t Companies House Crown Way, Cardiff, CFi4 Z

10 Indemnity

The Company has granted at und y 10 Rosalyn Mendeisohn and Peter Russell, as permitted by section 309B of the Companies Act 1985 {the 'Act) The indemnmty
provides that Rosalyn Mendelsohn and Peter Russell shall be mdemmified out of the assets of the Company agawst any ftabiity, ioss or expenditure mourred by them acting
as a durector of the Company or any of 1ts subsidianes 10 the fullest extent permtted by the Act




